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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the contents
of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss

howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of WLS Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete
in all material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this
report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are found

on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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OUR MISSION

“CIRCLE AND SQUARE” CONCEPT

In this intensely competitive world, the winners are those who take the initiative
to build a solid foundation before dedicating efforts on self improvement and

enhancing business efficiencies.

WLS Holdings Limited (‘WLS’ or the ‘Company’), with excellent business
acumen, takes a proactive stance on incorporating the ‘Circle and Square’
concept into its corporate mission. The underlying meaning of having a ‘Circle’
encompassing a square symbolises the importance of offering smooth services

and flexibility to external parties, and internally, attention to detail.

Cautiousness and striving after perfection are equally important. That is why
we shall adhere unwaveringly to our principle of perpetual emphasis and

continuous improvement on ‘Safety, Quality and Efficiency’.

WLS practises and preaches the theory of ‘Circle and Square’ by integrating
flexibility into every step of its operations as well as abiding by every legal

regulation and restriction.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

#H 2 H =+ H 1L B BUEEE Financial Year ended 30 April

e 111K 2 SE A SFE A R4
2014 2013 2012 2011
T#L BRI T Tt
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
B Turnover 111,961 125,949 115,124 105,741
WRBiRT (BFE) Wi Fl  (Loss)/Profit before taxation (69,041) (13,968) 6,432 (28,193)
ANFIMELRSFFA N (Loss)/Profit for the year
JEEAG A AF BE attributable to equity
(548) thi Al holders of the Company (61,275) (14,219) 7,146 (26,174)

FR (B48) 2 (Loss)/Earnings per share

(#sIl1) (HK cent) (5.20) (1.27) 0.64 (3.00)
Wit - KL A —FEE AL T = HER 275 Notes:  The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 23 July 2001 and became
FEMET W —FEF A —H = i # the holding company of the companies now comprising the Group on 23 November
ZEIRFEFE ([ EIR R ) il 2 25 13 40 i j 2001 as a result of the Group Reorganisation as set out in the Company’s Prospectus
BT A — = H 2 B A 1] dated 30 November 2001 (the “Prospectus”).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

I am pleased to present the annual report of WLS Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 30 April 2014 (“the Year®).

In 2013, the Hong Kong economy attained modest growth, while the construction
industry grew steadily. According to data released by the Census and Statistics
Department of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR?), the total
gross value of construction works performed by main contractors, after discounting
the effect of price changes, increased by 2.4% in real terms in 2013.

Despite the keen competition in the scaffolding industry, the Group was able to
maintain its leading position in the market. A total of 25 projects were awarded
during the year. Benefiting from the robust demand for temporary gondolas from
the buildings’ repair and maintenance sector, the gondolas and access equipment
installation and maintenance service business recorded encouraging results. The
Group will continue to leverage on the increasing demand and press ahead with the
development of this business division in the coming year.

Safety is always our priority. During the Year, the Group has received a number
of industry and safety awards including The Best Safety Subcontractor Awards
acquired in February and April 2014 respectively for Lei Yue Mun Public Housing
development site and No. 50 Wong Chuk Hang Road construction site.

Looking ahead, the Group is prudently optimistic of the prospect in the coming
year. According to 2014 Policy Address, the HKSAR government set a target
of providing a total of 470,000 units in the coming ten years, opening up new
opportunities for the construction industry as well as the scaffolding sector.
However, as infrastructure continues to grow, additional pressure is being put
on an already inadequately skilled workforce in this sector and drives costs up
even further. Coupled with the retirement of ageing workers and the reluctance of
younger people to join the industry, manpower storage and accelerating labour cost
are still our key challenges in the near term.
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In view of this, we will continue to promote the usage of “Pik-Lik” brand
scaffolding system in the lift shaft areas and external facades of construction sites in
an attempt to improve overall efficiency. Research and development activities will
be conducted in a bid to enhance “Pik-Lik” brand scaffolding system. The Group
will further expand business segments with higher profit margin such as gondolas,
access equipment installation and maintenance service division. Adjustment will be
made on the Group’s marketing strategy to focus more on large lump sum projects
to achieve economies of scale. In addition, the Group will strengthen the logistics,
warehouse and other back-up services to enhance overall profitability. Other than
our core business, we will diversify our business portfolio by investing in other
areas, such as property investment, with the aim to maintain sustainable growth of
the Group.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), I would like to
take this opportunity to extend my gratitude to our management team, staff, business
partners and shareholders for their continuous and unfailing support during the
Year.

So Yu Shing
Chairman

28 July 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 30 April 2014, the Company recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$111,961,000, representing a drop of 11% compared with
last year. Net loss attributable to equity holders of the Company amounted
to HK$61,275,000 (2013: HK$14,219,000), which was mainly due to severe
competition in the scaffolding industry during the year.

Scaffolding services

During the reporting year, the performance of the Group’s scaffolding division was
affected by peers bidding on projects with competitive prices, resulting in reduced
profit margins to the industry. In addition, the Group has encountered a shortage of
skilled workers, which has been a challenge for the whole industry, leading to high
labour costs during the year. Thanks to our impeccable track record, the Group was
awarded 25 new contracts during the year ended 30 April 2014 despite the keen
competition. The average amount of each contract increased due to larger scale of
the projects compared with last year. The newly invented scaffolding system “Pik-
Lik” (formerly called “Thunderbolt”) was brought into use and contributed to the
Group’s revenue during the year. The utilization rate of “Pik-Lik” has reached
approximately 15%. The provision of scaffolding services at the Mass Transit
Railway Ocean Park Station and Wong Chuk Hang Station, together with two large
construction sites in Yoho Town 3 and Sha Po respectively, all proceeded according
to plan.

Fitting out services

Regarding the operating results of the fitting out business division, one new contract
was secured during the year. The contract for the provision of fitting out services to
the bridal room at the 100th floor of International Commerce Centre was completed
during the year.
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Management contracting services

With regard to the management contracting business division, a contract for the
supply and installation of glass re-inforced concrete (GRC) panels for the Mass
Transit Railway Express Rail Link in Shek Kong, New Territories was awarded and
progressed according to plan.

Gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment installation and
maintenance services

As for gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment installation and maintenance
services, the Group recorded satisfactory results in the access equipment division.
The positive results were attributable to the flourishing rental market for temporary
gondolas. The contract for the supply and installation of an aerial working platform
and a personal lift to the Riva was completed. Meanwhile, the Group secured 23 new
contracts during the year under review.

In addition, the supply and installation of building maintenance units to the Mass
Transit Railway Hong Kong University Station and to a residential development on
Blue Pool Road have been in progress and on schedule. During the year, the Group’s
temporary gondola fleet achieved nearly full utilization rate.

Research & Development and awards

During the year under review, the Group strived to enhance its research and
development ability and further develop its newly invented “Pik-Lik™ scaffolding
system. The “Pik-Lik” scaffolding system is expected to be widely adopted by the
market because of high operational efficiency and its ability to save manpower.

The Group has been playing a vital role in the scaffolding industry thanks to its high-
quality service. It was awarded two monthly best safety subcontractor awards in
recognition of its effort in safety compliance during the year under review.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Looking forward, with the deployment of newly invented “Pik-Lik” scaffolding
system, the Group is confident with the prospects of the scaffolding industry. It
saves up to 75% manpower compared with traditional systems and is able to ease
manpower shortage problem. The Group will further promote the usage of “Pik-Lik”
to improve operational efficiency.

Regarding access equipment, which is one of the key growth drivers, the Group is
planning to purchase an additional 50 gondolas to meet the increasing demand in
future.

Other than the core business, the Group is seeking possible acquisition opportunities
to diversify its business portfolio, with an emphasis on but not limited to property
investment. On 12 June 2014, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement to acquire an aggregate interest of 51% equity interest in Dragon Oriental
Investment Limited (the “Target Company”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands which is principally engaged in property investment in Hong Kong, at
a consideration of HK$21.7 million. The Target Company owns a property located
in Hip Wo Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, with a saleable floor area of approximately
420 sq. ft. The property to be acquired is currently leased to an independent third
party at a monthly rental of HK$75,000. Management expects that it would generate
stable rental revenue and returns and provide capital-appreciation potentials to the
Group.

On 27 June 2014, the Group entered into a placing agreement with a placing
agent for issuance of convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$30,000,000, with the initial conversion price of HK$0.10 per conversion share
(subject to adjustments) for the bondholders. Of the net proceeds of approximately
HK$28,610,000, 61% will be applied to the acquisition for a 51% interest of a
company possessing the above-mentioned property, and the remaining 39% as
general working capital of the Group.

In view of the encouraging momentum of Hong Kong economy ahead, it is
expected that the number of infrastructure and real estate projects will continue to
increase. The Group will maintain its policy in stringent cost control and operation
streamlining, to optimize efficiency and recognize better financial results. Apart
from the existing business, the Group will continue to seek investment opportunities
in securities of both listed or non-listed companies as well as identify potential
business and investment opportunities to maximise shareholders’ interest.

Continuing to assume a leading role in the scaffolding industry, the Group believes
that it will be able to capture the upcoming opportunities leveraging its professional
and extensive experience, and deliver sustainable growth.

1
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Project Portfolio of Scaffolding Division (As of 30 April 2014)

Hong Kong

. Century Gateway

. The Wings

. Deauville

. Yoho Town, Phase 3
. The Golden Gate

. Park Ivy
. AnaCapri (Park Island — Phase 6)
. Mass Transit Railway Nam Cheong Station

. West Kowloon Terminus Station (North), Express Rail Link

. Midfield Concourse of Hong Kong International Airport

. Ocean Park Station and Wong Chuk Hang Station of MTRC

. Science Park (Phase 3)

. Extension Block to Salesian Seminary at 18 Chai Wan Road

. Chinese People’s Liberation Army Force Hong Kong Building

. St. Paul’s Hospital Redevelopment
. Commercial Building Development at 16 Hart Avenue, Tsim Sha Tsui
. Commercial Building Development at 31-37 Des Voeux Road Central

. Commercial Building Development at 50 Wong Chuk Hang Road

. Residential Development at Sa Po North, Yuen Long

. Residential Development at Tung Chung, Area 36

. Residential Development at TMTL 422, Siu Lam

. Residential Development at TMTL 449, Area 58, Tsing Fat Lane, Siu Lam

. Residential Development at 3-5 Ede Road, Kowloon Tong

. Residential Development at 56-66 Nga Tsin Long Road, Kowloon City

. Residential Development at 8§ Mount Nicholson Road

. Residential Development at 1 Serenity Path, Silverstrand, Sai Kung

. Urban Renewal Authority Residential Development at Third Street, Sai Ying
Pun

. Public Housing Development at Anderson Road, Site D

. Public Housing Development at Lei Yue Mun, Phase 3

. Development at F.S.S.T.L. 177, Sha Tau Kok Road, Fanling

. Public Rental Housing Development at Kwai Shing Circuit
. Composite Building at N.K.I.L. 6494, Lai Chi Kok Road, Sham Shui Po

. Refurbishment of Nan Fung Tower, Central

. Refurbishment of Royal Plaza Hotel

. Refurbishment of 127 Repulse Bay Road, Repulse Bay

. Refurbishment of Wah Luen Industrial Centre at Wong Chuk Yeung Street,
Fo Tan

. Refurbishment of Central Government Office, Lower Albert Road, Central

. Refurbishment of Fashion Plaza in Witty Commercial Building, Mong Kok

. Refurbishment of Millennium Trade Centre, Kwai Chung
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FINANCIAL REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

During the year under review, the Group recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$111,961,000, representing a decrease of approximately 11% as compared with
that of the preceding year. The Company recorded a net loss attributable to its equity
holders of approximately HK$61,275,000 during the year ended 30 April 2014.
The decrease in turnover and increase in net loss were mainly due to allowances
made for impairment of trade and other receivables, write-off of amounts due from
customers for contract work and impairment of goodwill of the Group totalling
HK$59,482,000 during the year.

Gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately 49% as compared with last
year whilst gross profit margin decreased to approximately 9% during the year.
Gross profit margin of the Hong Kong scaffolding division decreased due to current
keen competition.

During the year under view, operating and administrative expenses (excluding
allowance for the bad and doubtful debts and write-off of amounts due from
customers for contract work totalling approximately: HK$56,344,000 (2013:
HK$13,452,000)) decreased by approximately 3% as compared to the preceding
year. Management of the Group continues to adopt a policy of vigilant cost
monitoring and operation streamlining in an effort to minimise cost and optimise
efficiency.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES, CAPITAL
STRUCTURE AND GEARING RATIO

During the year under review, the Group financed its operations by banking
facilities and finance leases provided by banks and finance companies. As at 30
April 2014, the Group’s consolidated shareholders’ funds, current assets, net current
assets and total assets were approximately HK$99,623,000 (2013: approximately
HK$134,234,000), approximately HK$105,028,000 (2013: approximately
HK$139,363,000), approximately HK$15,628,000 (2013: approximately
HK$61,577,000) and approximately HK$183,286,000 (2013: approximately
HK$208,892,000) respectively.

As at 30 April 2014, the Group’s consolidated bank overdrafts and bank loans
were approximately HK$11,772,000 (2013: approximately HK$13,968,000)
and approximately HK$41,205,000 (2013: approximately HK$35,237,000)
respectively. As at 30 April 2014, the Group’s other loans totalled approximately
HK$9,689,000 (2013: approximately HK$5,341,000).As at 30 April 2014,
obligations under finance leases amounted to approximately HK$1,021,000 (2013:
approximately HK$1,631,000), of which HK$577,000 is due for repayment next
year and approximately HK$444,000 is due for repayment after next year.
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As at 30 April 2014, the Group’s bank and cash balances amounted to approximately
HK$7,405,000 (2013: approximately HK$7,221,000). As at 30 April 2014, the
Group’s gearing ratio (total borrowings and obligations under finance leases divided
by shareholders’ fund) was approximately 64% (2013: approximately 42%).

Most of the Group’s bank and cash balances, bank borrowings and obligations under
finance leases are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Most of the bank borrowings
bear interest at market rates and are repayable by instalments over a period of 3
months to 9 years. Obligations under finance leases have an average lease term
of 4 years. All such leases have interest rates fixed at the contract date and fixed
repayment bases.

The Directors believe that the Group is in a healthy financial position and has
sufficient resources to discharge its debts and to satisfy its commitments and
working capital requirements.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
30 April 2014 (year ended 30 April 2013: None).

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Operating segments

The Group is currently organised into 3 operating segments — (i) scaffolding and
fitting out services for construction and building work, (ii) management contracting
services for construction and building work and (iii) gondolas, parapet railings
and access equipment installation and maintenance services. Details of results by
business segments are shown in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Geographical segments

The customers of the three divisions of the Group are situated in Hong Kong
and Macau. Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements provides analysis
of the turnover, carrying amounts of segment assets and capital expenditure by
geographical markets.

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Except as disclosed in the business outlook above, the directors do not have any
future plans for material investments or capital assets.
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PLEDGE ON ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has pledged the following assets
against general banking facilities granted to the Group:

e

2014 2013

F#L THT

HK$’000 HK$°000
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Most of the assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company Limited, one of the Group’s
subsidiaries, entered into a foreign currency forward contract with DBS Bank (Hong
Kong) Limited on 27 March 2013. This foreign currency forward contract is a
derivative and classified as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss. The
Directors consider that there is potential foreign exchange exposure of the Group in
regard of this foreign currency forward contract.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 30 April 2014, the Group provided counter indemnities amounting to
HK$646,600 (2013: HK$646,600) to banks for surety bonds issued by the banks in
respect of construction contracts.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30 April 2014, the total number of full-time employees of the Group was
125 (2013: 137). The total remuneration paid to employees (including directors’
emoluments) amounted to HK$35,771,000 in 2014 (2013: HK$39,475,000).
Employees are remunerated according to their performance and working
experience. In addition to basic salaries and participation in the mandatory provident
fund scheme, staff benefits include performance bonus, medical scheme, share
options and training.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 30 April 2014, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Code on Corporate Governance Practice set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules (“Code on Corporate Governance Practices”) which is effective for
the accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2005 has replaced the
minimum standard of good practices for issuers and their directors stated in Rules
5.35 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing Rules. In the opinion of the Board, the Company
has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices. A Corporate
Governance Report will be despatched with the annual report of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 9 November 2001 with written
terms of reference that clearly establish the audit committee’s authority and duties.
The audit committee currently comprises 3 independent non-executive directors of
the Company, Mr. Lam Kwok Wing, Mr. Yeung Po Chin and Dr. Fung Ka Shuen.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the Company’s annual
report and accounts, half-year report and quarterly reports and provide advice
and comments thereon to the Board. The audit committee is also responsible for
reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process and internal control
procedures of the Group.

Four audit committee meetings were held since 1 May 2013 up to the date of this
report.
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Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca (ZBi#% ), aged 59, is an executive director of the
Company and the spouse of Dr. So Yu Shing. Ms. Lai has been actively involved in
the management of the Group. She had been engaged in the teaching profession for
over 17 years before joining Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in 1988.
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Mr. Kong Kam Wang (VL% ), aged 57, is the chief executive officer and an
executive director of the Company. He has over 20 years of experience in the
banking industry and has held senior management positions specialising in
corporate banking as well as retail banking in a number of banks in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Before joining the Company in March 2002 and being appointed as an
executive director of the Company in June 2002, Mr. Kong was engaged as Vice
President and Zone Manager of First Pacific Bank Limited. In 1994, Mr. Kong
was assigned by First Pacific Bank Limited as representative to set up a Shenzhen
representative office in the PRC. During that period, Mr. Kong established close
relationships with various Chinese Government bureaus and other foreign financial
institutions whilst stationed in the Shenzhen representative office. Mr. Kong
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1981 with an honours
bachelor degree in Business Management. Mr. Kong also obtained an executive
master of business administration degree (‘EMBA”) from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong.
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Mr. Woo Siu Lun ($Jk#B#) , aged 59, is an executive director of the Company. Mr.
Woo has over 28 years of experience in various industries holding senior executive
positions. He was a director and senior partner of Euroair Equipment Supplies
Limited, a local engineering firm specialising in air-conditioning equipment supply
and he held an executive position in Liu Chong Hing Bank Limited for 12 years
before joining Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, in 1999. Mr. Woo holds a bachelor of social sciences
degree from the University of Hong Kong. He is also an associate of the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and has been a qualified corporate
secretary in Hong Kong for over 20 years.
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Mr So Wang Chun, Edmond (#% % #), aged 25, graduated from University of
Southern California in the United States of America with a Bachelor of Arts degree
in Sociology. Mr Edmond So gained experience in corporate finance, initial public
offerings and other financial advisory services by working for a year in a corporate
advisory firm which provides advisory services to China and Hong Kong based
companies. Mr Edmond So joined the Group in 2012 as a finance manager in charge
of the corporate finance matters of the Group.
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Mr. Ng Tang (2)#), aged 52, graduated in law from the East China University of
Politics and Law Department.

Mr. Ng has over twenty years of corporate management experience in China and
Hong Kong and has more than ten years extensive experience in the management
and capital operation of listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Ng has served on the boards of various listed companies in Hong Kong. He was
the vice-chairman of the board of directors and executive director of China Best
Group Holding Limited (Stock Code: 0370), executive director of China Nonferrous
Matals Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 8306) and independent non-executive director of Sino
Union Energy Investment Group Limited (Stock Code: 0346).
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kwok Wing (FRE%E) , aged 60, is a practising accountant and he was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 11 August
2004. He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor of social
sciences degree and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is the sole proprietor of K. W. Lam & Co., Certified Public
Accountants and has over 30 years of experience in auditing, accounting and
taxation.
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Mr. Yeung Po Chin (52517 ) , aged 63, holds a bachelor of arts degree from the
University of Hong Kong. He is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and has been
admitted as a solicitor in England and Wales and as a barrister and solicitor in
Australia (ACT). Mr. Yeung has extensive experience in the legal profession, and
has been a legal adviser to a number of associations and an executive-committee
member of various social clubs. Mr. Yeung is at present a solicitor at T. L. Ip &
Co. Mr. Yeung was appointed as an independent non-executive director on 12
November 2002.
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Dr. Fung Ka Shuen (#§53i€), aged 53, is a full-time senior lecturer in the Department
of Engineering of the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Tuen Mun), Dr.
Fung joined Vocational Training Council since 1995. Dr. Fung received his bachelor
of science degree from the National Tsing Hua University, Taiwan in mechanical
engineering. He also received a D.E.A. from National Ecole Superieure de Mecanique
et d’Aerotechnique, Universite de Poitiers, France and a PhD degree from the Imperial
College, University of London in fluid mechanics respectively. Dr. Fung is currently
the Programme Coordinator of Higher Diploma in Mechanical Engineering and Higher
Diploma in Building Services Engineering. In the past, Dr. Fung published over
20 papers in the field of air pollution, healthcare facilities, noise and environmental
protection. Dr. Fung is a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, the
Institution of Mechanical Engineers, the Royal Aeronautical Society and the Institution
of Registered Professional Engineers. Besides, Dr. Fung is the Honorary Secretary of
the Hong Kong Institute of Marine Technology and a committee member of the Royal
Aeronautical Society (Hong Kong Branch).

Dr. Fung was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 28
September, 2007.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. So Wang Bon, Edward (#% % #8) , aged 33, joined the Group in 2000 as a
director of Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, which carries out all the scaffolding work contracts
of the Company. He graduated from Oxford Brookes University in the United
Kingdom with a bachelor of science degree. He also holds a master of science
degree in Engineering Business Management from the University of Warwick in the
United Kingdom. Mr. So is the son of Dr. So Yu Shing, Chairman of the Company
and Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca, an executive director of the Company.
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Mr. Yau Siu Kwong (F£JE)) , aged 42, is the general manager of the scaffolding
division of the Company. He first joined the Group in July 1997 and is responsible
for research and development, marketing and business development. He holds a
bachelor of science degree from the University of Alberta, Canada and a master
of science degree in environmental management from the University of London,
Imperial College of Science, Technology and Medicine. He also obtained a master of
business administration degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Mr. Lee Sze Chung (Z=J8H#) | aged 45, is the financial controller of the Company.
Mr. Lee joined the Group in August 2007. He holds a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy from the University of Wollongong of New South Wales, Australia
and a postgraduate diploma in corporate administration from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Lee is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Certified Practising
Accountant of CPA Australia. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators,
and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and also an ordinary member of the
Hong Kong Securities Institute. Mr. Lee had over 20 years’ experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management.
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Mr. So Yu Fai, David (#§¥#i) , aged 55, joined the Group in 2006 as a director
of Skylon International Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, a member of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors and also a member of the Chartered Institute of Building.
He had served on a number of committees of these three professional bodies over
the last 20 years and has an in-depth knowledge of professional matters related to a
wide variety of construction standards and ethics. Mr. So has an honours UK degree
in buildings economics and an Australian master degree in project management.
In addition to his wide experience in construction works, he also worked for the
Australian Federal Government as an administration officer for several years.
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Mr. Chung Kam Ning (# 8 %), aged 63, is a quantity surveying manager the
scaffolding division of the Company. His previous experience includes working as
an engineer in Pittsburgh, U.S.A. for certain construction projects, such as US Steel,
Shippingport Atomic Power Plant and USSR Kamar River Truck Foundry. After
returning to Hong Kong, he was engaged in the field of building and construction,
construction machinery and plant and building services. Mr. Chung has participated
in various large scale construction projects internationally and locally, such as Daya
Bay, Jinshan Nuclear power plants, The Three Gorges Hydropower plant, various
highway, railway, coal-fired power plants, mass transit railway, ferry pier and
airport projects.
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Ms. Luk Man Nar, Daisy (B2 5), is a human resources manager of the Company.
She worked for Gammon Construction Limited for 13 years before joining Wui
Loong Scaffolding Works Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, in December 1995. Ms. Luk holds a master of business administration
degree from Liverpool John Moores University, a diploma in administrative
management from the Institute of Administrative Management of the United
Kingdom and a certificate in personnel management from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Human
Resource Management.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Ms. Yuen Pui Kwan (i), is an Assistant Manager of the Company. She worked
for seven years in the Temasek Holdings Limited, an investment company owned
by the Government of Singapore, before joining the Group in 2005. She holds a
Master of Business Administration degree from The University of South Australia,
a Bachelor degree in Business Administration from The University of Western
Sydney and a Diploma in Management Studies from Hong Kong Management
Association. She is also a member of Hong Kong Management Association.
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Mr. Chan Chor Wai (BEB¥{#), aged 32, is the manager of the scaffolding division
of the Company. He joined the Group in April 2011 and is responsible for research
and development, engineering management and staff training. He holds a bachelor
of Social Sciences in Administration and Public Management Studies from the City
University of Hong Kong and a Higher Diploma of Transport and Logistics Studies
from Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education.
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INTRODUCTION

The Board and the management of the Company are committed to establishing good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The maintenance of high standard
of business ethics and corporate governance practices has always been one of the
Company’s goals. The Company believes that good corporate governance provides
a framework that is essential for effective management, successful business growth
and a healthy corporate culture, thereby leading to the enhancement of shareholders’
value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise a quality Board,
sound internal controls, transparency and accountability to all shareholders. By
applying rigourous corporate governance practices, the Company believes that its
accountability and transparency will be improved thereby instilling confidence to
shareholders and the public. Throughout the financial year ended 30 April 2014,
the Company has complied with the code provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The Board has, since the amendments to the GEM Listing
Rules regarding corporate governance practices were first proposed by the Stock
Exchange, continued to monitor and review the Company’s progress in respect
of corporate governance practices to ensure compliance. Meetings were held
throughout the year and where appropriate, circulars and other guidance notes were
issued to directors and senior management of the Company to ensure awareness to
issues regarding corporate governance practices.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board, which currently comprises 9 directors, is collectively responsible for
supervising the management of the business and affairs of the Company and the
Group. Details of the Chairman and the other directors of the Company are set out
in the Directors’ Report. All directors give sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Company and the Group.

In late 2011, The Stock Exchange introduced a series of amendments to the Code
and the GEM Listing Rules. As part of such amendments, a new Rule 5.05A
was introduced where a listed issues must appoint independent non-executive
directors representing at least one-third of the Board by 31 December 2012.
Throughout the year ended 30 April 2014, the Board has six executive directors
and three independent non-executive directors, thus being in compliance with the
requirements of Rule 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules.

The presence of three independent non-executive directors is considered by the
Board to be a reasonable balance between executive and non-executive directors.
The Board is of the opinion that such balance can provide adequate checks and
balances for safeguarding the interests of shareholders and of the Company. The
independent non-executive directors provide to the Company with a wide range of
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expertise and experience so that independent judgement can effectively be exercised
as well as ensuring that the interests of all shareholders are taken into account. They
are also responsible for participating in Board meetings, dealing with potential
conflicts of interest, serving on Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, scrutinising the Company and the Group’s performance
and reporting. Through their active participation, they provide their valuable skills,
expertise and experience to the Board and the committees on which they serve so
that the management process can be critically reviewed and controlled.

In full compliance with rule 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed three independent non-executive directors and at least one of them
has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has received from each independent non-
executive director an annual confirmation of his independence and the Company
considers such directors to be independent in accordance with each and every
guideline set out in rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive directors are identified as such in all corporate
communications containing the names of the directors. In addition, there is no
material relationship among members of the Board except that one executive
director is the spouse of the Chairman and one executive director is the son of the
Chairman and his spouse, who is also an executive director.

Board Diversity

For the year ended 30 April 2014, the Company has complied with Code Provision
A.5.6 in the revised Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. The Board
has adopted a board diversity policy with effect from 1 September 2013. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Selection of candidates for Board membership will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge.

Board Meetings

The full Board regularly meets in person at least four times every year. The directors
all participated in person. At least 14 days’ notice of all board meetings were given
to all directors, who were all given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda
for discussion. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda
for the meeting and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations in connection
with the meetings are observed and complied with. The finalised agenda and
accompanying board papers are then sent to all directors at least three days prior to
the meeting.
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During the financial year ended 30 April 2014, 9 board meetings were held and the
following is an attendance record of the meetings by each director:

HI R S Ha
Number of Hm#
meetings attended/ Attendance
LA Attendants Total percentage
HWiTES Executive Directors
BRI, So Yu Shing 9/9 100%
B itk Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca 9/9 100%
TLER % Kong Kam Wang 9/9 100%
[Pl Woo Siu Lun 9/9 100%
BRZFB (O — & —4FE=H -t HEHTE) So Wang Bon, Edward (resigned on 17 March 2014) 6/6 100%
APt O ZF— AR H 75 H BHT) Yu Yeung Hoi, Stephen (resigned on 16 April 2014) 8/8 100%
R R R —E= L A ERE) So Wang Chun, Edmond (appointed on 17 March 2014)  3/3 100%
S (R —F—4EM ]85 AR Ng Tang (appointed on 16 April 2014) 1/1 100%
B IEBATE S Independent Non-executive Directors
Wb il Yeung Po Chin 9/9 100%
T e Lam Kwok Wing 9/9 100%
Vi 8 Fung Ka Shuen 9/9 100%
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During the regular meetings of the Board, the directors discuss and formulate the
overall strategies of the Company and the Group, monitor financial performances
and discuss the annual and interim results, set annual budgets, as well as discuss and
decide on other significant matters. The execution of daily operational matters is
delegated to management of the Group.

The Company Secretary records the proceedings of each board meeting in detail by
keeping minutes, including the record of all decisions by the board together with
concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if any). Drafts of board minutes are
circulated to all directors for comment and approval as soon as practicable after the
meeting. All minutes are open for inspection at any reasonable time on request by
any director.

All directors have access to relevant and timely information at all times as the
Chairman ensures that the management will supply the Board and its committees
with all relevant information in a timely manner. They may make further enquiries
if in their opinion it is necessary or appropriate to request for further information.
They also have unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, who is held responsible for providing directors with board papers and
related materials and ensuring that all proper Board procedures are followed and that
all applicable laws and regulations are complied with. If considered necessary and
appropriate by the directors, they may retain the service of independent professional
advisers at the Company’s expense.

In case where a conflict of interest may arise involving a substantial shareholder or
a director, such matter will be discussed in a physical meeting and will not be dealt
with by way of written resolutions. Independent non-executive directors with no
conflict of interest will be present at meetings dealing with such conflict issues.
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The board committees, including the audit committee, the remuneration committee
and the nomination committee, have all adopted the applicable practices and
procedures used in board meetings for all committee meetings.

Shareholders’ Meetings

The annual general meeting and other general meetings of the Company are the
primary forum for communication by the Company with the shareholders and for
shareholders’ participation. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings on their behalf if they
are unable to attend the meetings.

During the year ended 30 April 2014, the Company has held the annual general
meeting and an extraordinary general meeting on 29 August 2013 and on 28 March
2014 respectively. The individual attendance records of the directors at the general
meetings are as follows:

Jie A AR
HIEES

Annual General Meeting

LIy Es Attendants attendance percentage
WATE S Executive Directors
BRIV, So Yu Shing 100%
B itk Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca 100%
VL8R Kong Kam Wang 100%
GBI Woo Siu Lun 100%
W So Wang Bon, Edward 100%
it Yu Yeung Hoi, Stephen 100%
B IR R TE S Independent Non-executive Directors
NTES Lam Kwok Wing 100%
b il Yeung Po Chin 100%
W5 X HE Fung Ka Shuen 100%
Jhe Sk oK &
&R
Extraordinary General Meeting
mE#H Attendants attendance percentage
ATE S Executive Directors
BRI, So Yu Shing 100%
R4 1 Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca 100%
TLER Kong Kam Wang 100%
GBI Woo Siu Lun 100%
BRI So Wang Chun, Edmond 100%
it Yu Yeung Hoi, Stephen 100%
B IERATE S Independent Non-executive Directors
NTES Lam Kwok Wing 0%
b il Yeung Po Chin 100%
W5 X HE Fung Ka Shuen 100%
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The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman, Dr. So Yu Shing, is responsible for the Company’s and the Group’s
overall strategy and business development. The Chairman determines the broad
strategic direction of the Group in consultation with the full Board and is responsible
for the macro top-level decisions with regard to the overall business directions of the
Company and the Group.

Mr. Kong Kam Wang is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The authority
and responsibility for running the Company’s business and implementing the
Company’s strategies are carried out by the Chief Executive Officer. The Chief
Executive Officer, with the support of the Executive Directors, is responsible
for the strategic planning of the different business functions and the day-to-day
management and operations of the Company and the Group.

Training and Support for Directors

All directors, including non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors, must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities as directors and of
the business of the Group. As such, the Group provides a comprehensive and formal
induction to each newly appointed director upon his/her appointment. Briefings
and orientations are provided and organised to ensure that the new directors are
familiar with the role of the Board, their legal and other duties as a director as
well as the business and governance practices of the Company and the Group.
Such programmes are tailored to each individual director taking into account their
background and expertise. The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer will
continuously update all directors on the latest developments regarding the GEM
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance of
the same by all directors.

All directors also participate in continuous professional development programmes
provided or procured by the Group, such as external seminars organised by qualified
professionals, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in relation to
their contribution to the Board. A record of the training received by the respective
directors are kept and updated by the company secretary and compliance officer of
the Company.

Each director will, upon his/her first appointment and thereafter on a yearly basis,
disclose to the Company the number and nature of offices held by such director in
public companies and organisations and other significant commitments.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted procedures governing Directors’ securities transactions
in compliance with Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Confirmations
have been obtained from all Directors in compliance with the GEM Listing
Rules. Relevant employees, who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company, are also subject to compliance with
guidelines on no less exacting terms than those set out in the GEM Listing Rules.
No incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company during the financial year
ended 30 April 2014.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2006. The Chairman of the
committee is Mr. Yeung Po Chin, an independent non-executive director of the
Company. Other members of this committee include Mr. Lam Kwok Wing and Dr.
Fung Ka Shuen, both being independent non-executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for formulating and recommending
to the Board the remuneration policy, determining the remuneration of executive
directors and members of senior management of the Group, as well as reviewing and
making recommendations on the Company’s share option scheme, bonus structure,
provident fund and other compensation-related issues. This committee consults with
the Chairman on its proposals and recommendations and has access to professional
advice if deemed necessary. The Remuneration Committee is also provided with
other resources enabling it to discharge its duties.

The specific terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on the
Company’s website. The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year.

During the financial year ended 30 April 2014, 1 remuneration committee meeting
was held. At the meeting, the remuneration committee reviewed matters relating to
the remuneration packages of directors and senior management. The following is an
attendance record of the meeting by each committee member:

HiRE R,

Number of Hm#

meetings attended/ Attendance

Ly Es Attendants Total percentage

Wb Hil Yeung Po Chin 11 100%

N B Lam Kwok Wing 1/1 100%

R e Fung Ka Shuen 1/1 100%
RAZE® Nomination Committee
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The Nomination Committee was established in March 2012. The Chairman of the
committee is Dr. So Yu Shing, the Chairman and executive director of the Company.
Other members of this committee include Mr. Lam Kwok Wing and Dr. Fung Ka
Shuen, both being independent non-executive directors.

The duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board at least annually, making recommendations on
any proposed changes to the board to complement the Company and the Group’s
corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and selecting individuals nominated for directorship, assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief
executive officer.

29



30

EEZER AR AT WLS Holdings Limited

(e Xk e

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

184 2% BB 2 RS B 1R S O A 4 R
ZHU b A ZAENFERDRT KRG
ko WE T AR A =+ H R EEE
RAEZB GBS - RKEGH - HFZBGNES
H ek e R

The specific terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on the
Company’s website. The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. During
the financial year ended 30 April 2014, the Nomination Committee has held 1
meeting. The individual attendance record of each member is as follows:

HiRE S,

Number of H) S
meetings attended/ Attendance
iy Es Attendants Total percentage
BRIV, So Yu Shing 1/1 100%
NTES Lam Kwok Wing 1/1 100%
R e Fung Ka Shuen 1/1 100%

T AR ) e AT Term of Appointment and Re-election of Directors
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All the executive directors of the Company have each entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years. All the above-mentioned
service contracts are continuous until terminated by either party giving to the other
not less than three months’ notice in writing, or by payment of three months’ salary
in lieu of such notice.

The independent non-executive directors have no fixed term of office but are
subject to the provision of retirement and rotation of directors under the articles of
association of the Company.

All directors, including the executive and non-executive directors, would retire from
office by rotation and are subject to re-election at the annual general meeting once
every three years. In accordance with Articles 99 and 116 of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. So Wang Chun, Edmond, Mr. Ng Tang, Mr. Yeung Po Chin, Mr.
Lam Kwok Wing and Dr. Fung Ka Shuen will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, would offer themselves for re-election.

According to the Company’s articles of association, directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first annual general meeting after their
appointment and shall be subject to re-election by shareholders. All directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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Audit Committee and Accountability

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive
assessment of the Company’s and the Group’s performance and prospects. The
Board is also responsible for preparing the accounts of the Company, which give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the Group on a
going-concern basis, and other price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures. The management of the Company and the Group provides all relevant
information and records to the Board enabling it to make the above assessment and
to prepare the accounts and other financial disclosures.

During the financial year ended 30 April 2014, the Audit Committee reviewed the
quarterly reports, interim report and the annual report of 2013. The audit Committee
also reviewed the Group’s accounting principles, practices, compliance, etc.

In full compliance with rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Audit Committee,
established in 2001, is currently chaired by Mr. Lam Kwok Wing, an independent
non-executive director, and the other members are Mr. Yeung Po Chin and Dr. Fung
Ka Shuen, both being independent non-executive directors of the Company.

No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the existing auditing firm
of the Company within one year on the date of his ceasing to be a partner or had any
financial interest in the auditing firm.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with their review of the independence of auditor,
the audit process and the standard of reports aforesaid. The Audit Committee made
a recommendation to the Board and there was no disagreement between the Board
and the Audit Committee during the year under review.

The Audit Committee’s primary duties include ensuring the Company’s financial
statements, annual, interim and quarterly reports and the auditor’s report present a
true and balanced assessment of the Company’s and the Group’s financial position;
reviewing the Company’s and the Group’s financial control, internal control and
risk management systems; and reviewing the Company’s financial and accounting
policies and practices. Other duties of the Audit Committee are set out in its specific
terms of reference which are posted on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge
its duties. The Company’s Annual Report for the year ended 30 April 2014 has been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

31



32

EEZER AR AT WLS Holdings Limited

(e Xk e

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

WE L —TEN A =+ B IE B BUFEE - #%
ZEE BT TR o &R A R R
BRANE

For the financial year ended 30 April 2014, the Audit Committee has held 4
meetings. The individual attendance record of each member is as follows:

HiE &SRR
Number of HY
meetings attended/ Attendance
LIy Es Attendants Total percentage
Wb Hil Yeung Po Chin 4/4 100%
N e Lam Kwok Wing 4/4 100%
U5 X HE Fung Ka Shuen 4/4 100%
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The Company Secretary keeps full minutes of all Audit Committee meetings. In
line with practices consistent with Board meetings and other committee meetings,
draft and final versions of Audit Committee meeting minutes are circulated to all
members of the Audit Committee for comments, approval and record as soon as
practicable after each meeting.

Directors’ responsibility in preparing consolidated financial
statements

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the consolidated
financial statements and ensuring that the preparation of the accounts is in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable standards.

The statement of the auditors of the Company in relation to their reporting
responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 44 to 45 of this Annual Report.

Going Concern

The directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the Company
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the consolidated financial statement.

Corporate Governance Function

No corporate governance committee has been established and the Board will
therefore be responsible for performing the corporate governance functions such
as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements etc.



P R

EHREHEAFLZ B TARAAL AR
By Z A0 B B R > LAGR BEAC 2 F] Y
PERE Te e R R 48 LA R wl i 45 il 09 I
R o TGN AR AN A A Y 7R B
PR o B O [ AT B2 1A R B G
B~ BR3P R B HER R A A
T A B ] N S W A ) P ) FRURLC

ARG RARR R B E L HE R - filin Lo
ol DUAS 2 A - A5 S L LB 1Y) AR RS
BR - EREERREM R OB GIE > L
T A7 B 5 ity B ST 0 R B ik il (44 b
TR B4 R o

A il P <

B EG s HEE IR —F— = FNAA T
FSRAT 2 TR0 R A A K o A 2y A 8 W) A B
fii o A E —EF—PU4ENH =+ HIEEE - B
Jite 25 | il =5 255 9T A SR A RS 1) AR 2 )
Je 7 £E B 2 T 465 43 1l 2% 780,000 95 oG (%
— =4E 1 890,000 #57G) J 15,000 0 (—F—=
F 1 41,000 #70) ©

3 R

R B TR AS A T 6 1) B R I T B R A
HRGE o BT AR A IERNRALE > 5THA
BH 22 AT 19 T2 B AGR BAGRAE o ph A AS 4R T 2 2K
Z > [RICAT B s P S5 wt B0 1A T
TR C R TAEBE G -

IhEZ A s (MEEZ AT - HiZ B e R4
Z2 H ) YA e o TRRE R R - 37 TS A B
LRGN BT - I Z B g RENA
BHRE - BB SRR R R ES e RE > I
BT ERUUT > AR TAT 8 Al ROR &
HEftE o

EHREHFREE S TEEARZ BT A
HES) > TR LSRR ) It > MG RP AU
NFEERAF o

ZT—NEFHR  Annual Report 2014

che JigE 8
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Internal Control

The Board along with the Audit Committee is responsible for maintaining sound
and effective internal control systems for the Company to safeguard its assets
and shareholders’ interests, as well as for reviewing the effectiveness of such
systems. The Board will from time to time conduct a review of the Company’s and
the Group’s internal control systems. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Company’s and the Group’s internal control systems, covering financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions during the year
under review.

In such review, the Board has considered factors such as changes since the last
review, scope and quality of management’s monitoring of risks; incidence of
significant control failings and identified weaknesses; and effectiveness relating
to financial reporting and compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
including the Listing Rules.

Auditor’s Remuneration

Moore Stephens was re-appointed as the auditor of the Company at the annual
general meeting held on 29 August 2013. The remuneration in respect of audit and
other services provided by Moore Stephens to the Company and the Group during
the year ended 30 April 2014 is HK$780,000 (2013: HK$890,000) and HK$15,000
(2013: HK$41,000), respectively.

Delegation by the Board

The Board is responsible for decisions in relation to the overall strategic
development of the Company’s business. All directors have formal letters of
appointment setting out key terms and conditions relative to their appointment. Due
to the diversity and volume of the Group’s business, responsibility in relation to
the daily operations and execution of the strategic business plans are delegated to
management of the Group.

All committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee, have specific terms of reference clearly defining
the authorities and responsibilities of the respective committees. All committees
are required by their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation to their
decisions, findings or recommendations, and in certain specific situations, to seek
the Board’s approval before taking any actions.

The Board review, on a yearly basis, all delegations by the Board to different
committees to ensure that such delegations are appropriate and continue to be
beneficial to the Company as a whole.
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Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

Insurance cover has been taken out for Directors’ and Officers’ Liability to provide
adequate cover, as determined by the Board, in respect of the Board members and
senior management members of the Company as from June 2010 and renewed
annually in June since 2011.

Shareholder Relations

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency and employs
a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information to its shareholders.
The commitment to fair disclosure and comprehensive and transparent reporting of
the Company’s activities can be reflected in many aspects.

In endeavouring to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders, the annual
general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange views with
the Board. All the directors of the Company make a special effort to attend the
Company’s general meetings so that they may answer any questions from the
shareholders.

The Chairman was also actively involved in organising, and personally held the
annual general meeting in 2013 and all previous meetings of the Company in order
to ensure that shareholders’ views were communicated to the Board. A separate
resolution was proposed by the Chairman in respect of each separate issue at the
annual general meeting.

The proceedings of the annual general meeting are reviewed from time to time to
ensure the Company conforms to the best practices regarding corporate governance.
The annual general meeting circular, which is circulated to all shareholders at least
21 days prior to the holding of the annual general meeting, sets out the details in
relation to each resolution proposed, voting procedures (including procedures for
demanding and conducting a poll) and other relevant information. At the beginning
of the meeting, the Chairman indicates to the meeting the level of proxies lodged on
each resolution and the balance for and against such resolution. At the Company’s
2013 Annual General Meeting, all the resolutions were put to the vote by poll and
Tricor Tengis Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, was
engaged as scrutineer to ensure the votes were properly counted.

The Company also communicates to its shareholders through its annual, interim and
quarterly reports. The directors, company secretary or other appropriate members
of senior management also respond promptly to inquiries from shareholders and
investors.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Procedures for shareholders to convene general meetings

Subject to the provisions of the articles of association of the Company, the GEM
Listing Rules and the applicable laws and regulations, shareholders of the Company
may convene general meetings of the Company in accordance with the following
procedures:

L. Two or more shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company as at the date of deposit of the requisition (the
“Requisitionists””) may require the Board to convene a general meeting of
the Company by depositing written requisitions at the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong at Rooms 1001-1006, 10th Floor, Tower A,
Southmark, 11 Yip Hing Street, Wong Chuk Hang, Aberdeen, Hong Kong,
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the Requisitionists.

2. General meetings may also be convened on the written requisition of any one
member of the Company (the “Requisitionist”) which is a recognised clearing
house (or its nominee(s) deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong at Rooms 1001-1006, 10th Floor, Tower A, Southmark, 11
Yip Hing Street, Wong Chuk Hang, Aberdeen, Hong Kong) specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the Requisitionist, provided that such
Requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company.

3. If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene the meeting, the Requisitionist(s) themselves or
any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided
that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The Company established a shareholders’ communication policy which had been
uploaded to the Company’s website (http://www.wls.com.hk) and details could be
found in the procedure.

Shareholders may also send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing
them to the Company Secretary by mail at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong at Rooms 1001-1006, 10th Floor, Tower A, Southmark, 11 Yip Hing
Street, Wong Chuk Hang, Aberdeen, Hong Kong.
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Investor Relations

The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate
information to shareholders and investors. The Company updates shareholders on its
latest business developments and financial performance through its annual, interim
and quarterly reports and notices, announcements and circulars. The Company’s
website (www.wls.com.hk) provides a communication platform to the public and
the shareholders.

To strengthen its relationship with investors, the Company regularly meets with
analysts and holds interviews with reporters and columnists of the press and other
economic journals.

During the year ended 30 April 2014, there had been no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.
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The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 April 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are set out in note 14, 18 and 19
respectively, to consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2014 are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 46.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year ended 30
April 2014 (year ended 30 April 2013: Nil).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The investment properties of the Group were revalued at 30 April 2014. The
increase in fair value of investment properties of HK$620,000 was credited to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 April 2014.
Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group during the year are
set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 30 April
2014 were as follows:

SR-mgE SF =
2014 2013

T THIT

HKS$°000 HKS$°000

03 A Share premium 143,393 119,374
EE i Accumulated losses (34,127) (17,107)
109,266 102,267
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Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 32 of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium of the Company is available for paying distributions or dividends
to shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of
Association and provided that immediately following the distribution or dividend
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive directors

Dr. So Yu Shing (Chairman)

Mr. Kong Kam Wang (Chief Executive Olfficer)

Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca

Mr. Woo Siu Lun

Mr. So Wang Bon, Edward (Resigned on 17 March 2014)
Mr. Yu Yeung Hoi, Stephen (Resigned on 16 April 2014)
Mr. So Wang Chun, Edmond (Appointed on 17 March 2014)
Mr. Ng Tang (Appointed on 16 April 2014)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Yeung Po Chin
Mr. Lam Kwok Wing
Dr. Fung Ka Shuen

In accordance with Articles 99 and 116 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. So Wang Chun, Edmond, Mr. Ng Tang, Mr. Yeung Po Chin, Mr.
Lam Kwok Wing and Dr. Fung Ka Shuen, will retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. They will
hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting and will then be eligible for
re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All the executive directors of the Company have each entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years. All the above-mentioned service
contracts are continuous until terminated by either party giving to the other not less
than three months’ notice in writing, or by payment of three months’ salary in lieu

of such notice.

The independent non-executive directors have no fixed term of office but are subject to
the provision of retirement and rotation of directors under the Articles of Association of

the Company.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE
OPTIONS

At 30 April 2014, the interests of the directors and their associates of the Company
in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance
(the “SFO”) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were required under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on Growth Enterprises Market (the “GEM Listing Rules”)

to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Bt Z 5 5 Long positions in shares
a B (1)  Shares
ot e 35 2 e HAAFD
Number of ordinary shares held BATIRAZ B L
N & KGR Percentage of the
Personal Family issued share capital
HHREA Name of director interest interest of the Company
BRIG N £ Dr. So Yu Shing 8,300,000 16,600,000 (Fffzka) 1.2%
(note a)
ikt 1+ Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca 8,300,000 16,600,000 (Fff&Eb) 1.2%

(note b)
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Number of ordinary shares held BATRAZ AL
6\ HE 25 EY3 Percentage of the
Personal Family issued share capital
WA Name of director interest interest of the Company
[ElY Mr. Woo Siu Lun 22,530,000 — 1.63%
VLR S Mr. Kong Kam Wang 11,045,000 - 0.80%
BRI Mr. So Wang Chun, Edmond 2,000,000 — 0.14%
VINEE e Mr. Lam Kwok Wing 2,000,000 — 0.14%
Wb Hi e Mr. Yeung Po Chin 2,000,000 - 0.14%
Rt A L By RO = (R A F ) 2 Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca is the spouse of Dr. So Yu Shing, Chairman of
B o the Company.
BRI B ARt i R A R E 8 M Mr. So Wang Chun, Edmond, is the son of Dr. So Yu Shing, Chairman of
it o+ (AN BT ES) 2 /RT o the Company and Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca, an executive director of the
Company.
FffaE - Notes:
(a) % 8,300,000 B A 3 £h B Wi L 4R o (a) Inclusive of 8,300,000 shares held by Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca.
(b) % 8,300,000 [ B4y BRI A I 45 - (b) Inclusive of 8,300,000 shares held by Dr. So Yu Shing.
Q) JEhE (2) Share options
AN T B AR 2 B8 2 RIS O G Details of the share option scheme adopted by the Company are set out in
AR B 34 - note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
TR ER AR N AN B B RE 2 S The following table discloses details of movements in respect of the
Company’s share options during the year:
K=k BEREL/ ROZ-NE
EA-R ERES O ERREE EREH it WAZTR
TTHEMR (HRRA LR 13 B P X Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Resignation/  FiATTfE
HHEA AR Exercisable period Exercise  Outstanding  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  appointment  Outstanding
Name of director Date granted (both dates inclusive) price  at1.5.2013 year year vear  ofdirectors  at30.4.2014
T
HKS
Bt s S il il S iGN 060 2,800,000 - - (2,800,000 - -
Dr. So Yu Shing § October 2007 R UER A
15 April 2008 to 14 April 2014
SE-CE-AAE S ACER-CET-ACTEA 0061 8300000 - (8,300,000 - - -
9 November 2012 EFE—H =1
23 November 2012 to 22 November 2014
Lt SERLELAR HoZZNENA LA 060 2,800,000 - - (2800000) - -
Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, § October 2007 FE—-NERA+IA
Rebecca 15 April 2008 to 14 April 2014
¢ S i B e St 2 ey 0061 8300000 — (8,300,000) - - -
9 November 2012 Eite S [TLES S s g

23 November 2012 to 22 November 2014
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e 3 (BERIE)/ RoF-NA
EA-H EREE O EAGE FREM Bt MAZTH
TTHAR (RRERARSER) 4 WA Granted Exercised Lapsed ~ (Resignation)/ WAL
f3i R Exercisable period Exercise  Outstanding ~ duringthe  duringthe  duringthe appointment  Outstanding
Name of director Date granted (both dates inclusive) price  at13.2013 year year year  of directors  at30.4.2014
o
HK$
HRBE SEEEETAAR BZERENATEA 060 5,800,000 - - (5800,000) - -
Mr. Woo Siu Lun § October 2007 EZE-WENAMH
15 April 2008 to 14 April 2014
CEENELACA ACEBE-A 0217 1400000 - - - - 1400000
2 May 2008 FE-WEF-AAR
9 November 2008 to § November 2014
SE-CE-AE S ACE-CET-ACTEA 0061 3900000 ~ (3,900,000 - - -
9 November 2012 FoE-E-AZtCH
23 November 2012 to 22 November 2014
K75 SEFLETAAR BZEBENATRA 060 4300000 - — (4300,000) - -
Mr. Kong Kam § October 2007 FF-ERA A
Wang 15 April 2008 to 14 April 2014
ZRPAERAZR BZERUER-IAR 0217 2,900,000 - - - - 2900000
2 May 2008 EF-EF—=HAR
9 November 2008 to § November 2014
SETEIE ASECE-ASTE 0061 3900000 - (3,900,000) - - -
9 November 2012 it S 12 R iy
23 November 2012 to 22 November 2014
[ CEREELAAR BZFFAENATEA 060 5800000 - - (5.800000) - -
Mr. So Wang Bon, § October 2007 EZF-ENATMA
Edward 15 April 2008 to 14 April 2014
SEENELACR ACEBE-ALE 0217 1400000 - - - (1400,000) -
2 May 2008 F-F-MEH-AAR
9 November 2008 to § November 2014
Sl 2 el S R S5 g v 0061 3900000 - (3,900,000) - - -
9 November 2012 ot o1 2 R ey
23 November 2012 to 22 November 2014
R isa SEFERAAR S ERELCAAR 0.128 - - - ~ 9000000 9,000,000
Mr. So Wang Chun, 8 November 2010 EE-AETCHLH
Edmond § December 2010 to 7 December 2016
Py SE-CE-AME S ACE-CET-ACTEA 0061 2,000,000 - (2000,000) - - -
Mr. Yu Yeung Hoi, 9 November 2012 FF-MEL-A 42
Stephen 23 November 2012 to 22 November 2014
Wit SETEIE ASECE-ASEE 0.061 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) - - -
Mr. YeungPoChin -~ 9 November 2012 ot o1 2 R |
23 November 2012 to 22 November 2014
WEARE Sl e S R S5 g v 0.061 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) - - -
Mr. Lam Kwok Wing 9 November 2012 ot S 12 R e |
23 November 2012 to 22 November 2014
7N SECERANE ASE-CE-ACEER 0061 2,000,000 - - - - 2000000
Dr.FungKaShuen 9 November 2012 ot SV 2 R s |
23 November 2012 to 22 November 2014
63,500,000 - (343000000 (21,500,000) 7,600,000 15,300,000
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Save as disclosed above, none of directors or their associates of the Company, had
any interests or short positions in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations at 30 April 2014.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors Interests in Shares and Share
Options”, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate, and none of the directors or their spouses or children under the age
of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised
any such right during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 April 2014, the Company has not been notified of any other person (other
than a Director of the Company) having an interest or short position in shares and
underlying shares of the Company representing 5% or more of the issued share
capital of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive directors,
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors as independent.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 30 April 2014, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 72% of the
Group’s total turnover and the turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 40% of the Group’s total turnover.

The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 32% of the the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director or a shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s five largest
customers.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to directors and
eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 30
April 2014.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors or the management shareholders of the Company or any of
their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any business
which competed or might compete with the business of the Group.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Company did not make any charitable and other donations
(2013: HK$63,000).

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company to re-appoint Messrs. Moore Stephens as independent auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
So Yu Shing

Chairman

28 July 2014
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MOORE STEPHENS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

905 Silvercord, Tower 2 %
30 Canton Road WY,

Tsimshatsui ﬁﬁ
Kowloon
Hong Kong ==

="
Tel : (852) 2375 3180 e

Fax : (852) 2375 3828 Al
E-mail : ms@ms.com.hk Bt
www.ms.com.hk i

To the Shareholders of WLS Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of WLS Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 46 to 139, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 30 April 2014, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at 30 April 2014 and of the
Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Moore Stephens
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 July 2014
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B E T —pmEpy =+ HI1FF/E  For the year ended 30 April 2014

e S I1E: —E

2014 2013

i Tt THTT

NOTES HK$°000 HKS$°000

CES Turnover 3 111,961 125,949
FHE A Cost of sales (102,254) (106,741)

B Gross profit 9,707 19,208

oAt A Other income 5 1,058 1,570
EwERATHE Operating and administrative expenses (75,012) (32,771)

BB NTE Increase in fair value of investment

Ham properties 620 6,410
W - R It (Loss)/gain on disposal of property,

(E518) W2 plant and equipment (183) 6
il A Finance costs 6 (2,093) (1,612)
A B E Impairment of goodwill (3,138) -
JRE VSR 5 A ) I A T Impairment of amounts due from associates and

I EE joint ventures - (6,779)
PR i 18 Loss before taxation (69,041) (13,968)
I Taxation 7 7,572 (661)
AR R Loss for the year 9 (61,469) (14,629)
HAFRBIAR 2 HE A Other comprehensive income, net of tax - =
B AR AE A T G 1 Total comprehensive loss for the year (61,469) (14,629)
D WNE W] =& ] Loss and total comprehensive loss attributable to:

e -

EN/NGIL TR DN Equity holders of the Company (61,275) (14,219)

TP E 4R Non-controlling interests (194) (410)

(61,469) (14,629)

&R Dividend 10 - -
sl — A Loss per share — basic (5.20 #: Al (1.27 %Al
11 (HK5.20 cents) (HK1.27 cents)

B e 8 — i Loss per share — diluted (5.20 @A) (1.27 %A1
11 (HK5.20 cents) (HK1.27 cents)
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RoF—pmaEmA=+H At 30 April 2014

ZE YL —EF—=
WH=1+H WA =+H
30 April 30 April
2014 2013
MEGE Tt THIT
NOTES HK$’000 HK$°000
I B A Non-current assets
Eid<LyES Investment properties 12 36,370 35,750
W~ R I Property, plant and equipment 13 33,870 30,641
PEFER T 2 Deferred tax assets 31 8,018 =
[ Goodwill 16 - 3,138
MY B Intangible assets 17 - =
S k= /NP Interests in associates 18 - =
BN 2 HE 4 Interests in joint ventures 19 - -
78,258 69,529
B & Current assets
JRE VSR 855 A W) I Amounts due from associates 20 34 -
JREMSC A 7 A R A Amounts due from joint ventures 20 15 -
JEUR P A 4 TR #IA Amounts due from customers for
contract work 23 24,704 64,297
FH Inventories 21 774 876
TSI ~ Hed & Prepayments, deposits and
A B other current assets 25 6,068 2,438
JHRE WA R e EL At JRE WA T Trade and other receivables 22 58,920 57,072
JRE N AR 1] 45 3K IE Retention monies receivables 24 6,348 6,717
JREAR [m] B HA A 1 Current tax recoverable 80 62
AR ERIT A7 Pledged bank deposit 26 680 680
SRATHE R M Hl 4 Bank balances and cash 26 7,405 7,221
105,028 139,363
B £ K Current liabilities
Al R — ST Other loans — unsecured 28 9,689 5,341
JEAT &P A 4 TR #0H Amounts due to customers for
contract work 23 6,452 3,289
JPRE A B 5 LA B £+ 3 T Trade and other payables 27 15,054 14,957
JRE AN ] 48 T Retention monies payables 1,779 3,251
Pl AL 7 3% — BRI HA R 4> Obligations under finance leases
— current portion 29 577 610
JEEASS B A I Current tax payable 2,872 1,133
SRATEK Bank loans 30 41,205 35,237
SRATIE L Bank overdrafts 30 11,772 13,968

89,400 717,786
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REF—mFEmA=—+H At30Apri 2014

e S I1E: —E
WH=1+H WH=+H
30 April 30 April
2014 2013
MEGE T#u THIT
NOTES HKS$°000 HKS$°000
B A Net current assets 15,628 61,577
A U B £ £ Total assets less current liabilities 93,886 131,106
I B £ AR Non-current liabilities
Al AR A4 7 3% — JE BHA TR 2 Obligations under finance leases — 29 444 1,021
non-current portion
TRIERL T A i Deferred tax liabilities 31 273 2,111
717 3,132
HETE Net assets 93,169 127,974
Je AR B gt i Capital and reserves
JieAs Share capital 32 13,843 11,198
Tt Reserves 85,780 123,036
EN/NGIL G ETERZ DN Equity attributable to equity holders
JRRE Aok i of the Company 99,623 134,234
IE 1 AR £ Non-controlling interests (6,454) (6,260)
HE £ J0 0 Total equity 93,169 127,974
546 £ 139 H Z 556 M B iR ik — & —H4AE-L H The consolidated financial statements on pages 46 to 139 were approved and
TN H S S AR LR LR 5 authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 July 2014 and are signed
ANERAHEE on its behalf by:
R Rk IR e
SO YU SHING WOO SIU LUN
HH =

Director Director
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B E - T—pEpy H=+HIFFE/E  For the year ended 30 April 2014

ARA IR G 54 A MR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
fREER,/
(i) Y
JERHERE  AMHEE  Retained B i
A BRSO Share ikt profits/ Non-
Share Share Merger opton  Warrant (Accumulated % controlling ik
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total interests Total

Tkt Tk Tk Tk Tkt Tk Tk T Tk
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000

RoZ——4 1 May 2012

fif—H 11,198 119,374 2,222 7,607 - 7316 147,777 (6,000) 141,777
2EBERK Loss and total comprehensive
ARTEER loss for the year = - = = - (14,219) (14,219) (410) (14,629)
BT Issue of warrants = - = = 200 = 200 = 200
Tt B Grant of share options = = = 476 = = 476 = 476
AENBERHEAA  Share options lapsed
during the year - - - (969) - 969 - - -
JeE s Capital contribution by
BAEH non-controlling interests = - = = - = = 150 150
RZF—= 30 April 2013 and
WA=+Hk 1 May 2013
ZF—=0F
fLA—H 11,198 119,374 2,022 7,174 200 (5,934 134,234 (6,260) 127974
2EERR Loss and total comprehensive
B2 TR loss for the year - - - - - (61,275) (61,275) (194) (61,469)
et Bl & Placing of shares 2,239 21,947 - - - - 24,186 - 24,186
il g Exercise of share options 406 207 - - - - 2478 - 2478
ERIERERE  Share options lapsed
during the year - - - (5,530) - 5,530 - - -
K%~ 30 April 2014
NA=+H 13,843 143,393 2,222 1,644 200 (61,679) 99,623 (6,454) 93,169
FfaE Notes:
(1) AR AR REA AREL A R 45 A R 15 e (1) The consolidated loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company includes
822,550,000 70 (—ZF— =4F : 419,640,000 a loss of HK$22,550,000 (2013: profit of HK$9,640,000), which has been dealt with in
W) CAASA A AT R R - the financial statements of the Company.
) RIZF—M4ENA=1H > AEHZ Z5HER (2) At 30 April 2014, the accumulated losses of the Group included accumulated losses of
£ 475 JE A A SR B O W] 2 Bt E 143,000 HK$143,000 (2013: accumulated losses of HK$143,000) attributable to associates of the
Wt (ZF—=4F © BEtlE1E 143,000 00) - Group.
3) MRIZF—MENA=1H > AEHZ Z5HER (3) At 30 April 2014, the accumulated losses of the Group included accumulated losses
AU A5 MEAG A5 4 1B 5 8 W 2 B R 48 2,404,000 of HK$2,404,000 (2013: accumulated losses of HK$2,404,000) attributable to joint

W0 (2 — =48« HGEHES1E 2,404,000 #570) © ventures of the Group.
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At Bl 52 ) o
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B E T —pmEpy =+ HI1FF/E  For the year ended 30 April 2014

“)

(5)

ARG 2 4 U Rl R A A 7 2 8T 2 IRAS T (E
DMBRBURBEAE M —FF—F+—H ==
H AT 2 4 I F AL M A R JBE 2 ) 2 84T IReAS
T {EL 2 ZEH @

AR 2 B PR RE R AR i 2 PO TE AT B 2 42 4 AL 3
[l AR R 2 2 AR BRI SR 2 AP (E -

“)

(5)

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal amount
of the share capital issued by the Company in exchange for the nominal value for the
issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation
on 23 November 2001.

The share option reserve of the Group represents the fair value of share options granted

to the directors and employees of the Company at the relevant grant dates.
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B E - T—pmEpy =+ HIFFE/E  For the year ended 30 April 2014

e S I1E: —E
2014 2013
Tt THTT
HK$°000 HK$°000
JEE -0 Operating activities
W B il e 18 Loss before taxation (69,041) (13,968)
T 51 A TEAE AR Adjustments for:
FE A Interest income ) (10)
FilE AR Finance costs 2,141 1,612
g Depreciation 4,794 4,194
EWEE ~ R Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,
a8, (Wi s ) plant and equipment 183 (6)
A 2 B Impairment of goodwill 3,138 -
JREAC B2 A ) ]2 B A ) Impairment of amounts due from associates and
I 2 E joint ventures - 6,779
JREAS B A W) ] i A ) Write-back of amounts due to an associate and
I 2 a joint venture - (94)
SRR Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 268 10,350
JRRE WA R i Write-off of trade receivables - 91
RN A # TR T ZE 2 R Write-off of amounts due from customers for contract work 56,076 3,011
TAAT I ~ e S HAh IR B Write-off of prepayments, deposits and
2 R other current assets 150 -
A7 B R Write-off of inventories 10 -
BP0 Increase in fair value of investment properties (620) (6,410)
TR B BERAEZ A T(E Fair value of share options granted to employees - 476
A S A i R Operating cash flows before movements
B & wE) in working capital (2,909) 6,025
JREMSC ISR/ 2 R KSR Increase in amounts due from associates (34) (11)
JREMSC A 782 R R IE S Increase in amounts due from joint ventures (15) (32)
FEWCE P & %) LR RIE Increase in amounts due from
Hm customers for contract work (16,483) (9,189)
R (3m) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 92 (190)
TR ~ Fede S HA Increase in prepayments, deposits and
TLE) B EE other current assets (3,780) (64)
JFRE A e 5 5 LA B WA T Increase in trade and
Hm other receivables 2,116) (3,689)
R AT R ] 4 5 DL ik 2 Decrease in retention monies receivables 369 1,147
JEAT g 2 R i D Decrease in amounts due to an associate - (10)
JERT & P & &) LA HIE Increase in amount due to customers
Ham for contract work 3,163 1,400
JPRE A5 B R LA B £+ 3 T Increase in trade and other payables 97 2,057
Hm
R AT A ] 45 R T Decrease in retention monies payables (1,472) (393)
ST B A5 Cash used in operations (23,088) (2,949)
AN IEE Y Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (563) (72)
KRR B & HE Net cash used in operating activities (23,651) (3,021)
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—E U —EFz =
2014 2013
T#n T
HK$’000 HK$°000
& SEW Investing activities
BRI DSS Interest received 8 10
TEE W2 - WE Mkt Purchase of property, plant and equipment (8,848) (8,310)
HEZE ~ RE ki3 3KIH  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 642 6
P& S P Bl Net cash used in investing activities (8,198) (8,294)
Al SE Financing activities
CATFILE Interest paid (2,048) (1,505)
EA Rl LA 2 Finance lease charges paid (93) (107)
B ERA T B New bank loans raised 87,916 48,063
TE R ERAT R K Repayment of bank loans (81,948) (41,137)
B 7 AR 4 73S Repayment of obligations under finance leases (610) (525)
A7 (o B PR A Exercise of share options 2,478 =
J A5 T B 4 N AR Net proceeds from placing of shares 24,186 =
Hopth BB R AR Repayment of other loans (4,702) (510)
oA SR Increase in other loans 9,050 390
BEAT AR IR RS Issue of warrants - 200
AR E Rl 2 B Net cash generated from financing activities 34,229 4,869
HE KRB &EMEH Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
B, (WA ) w cash equivalents 2,380 (6,446)
AR Z B4 B B & A H Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (6,747) (301)
AR Z PG R BI &S H Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (4,367) (6,747)
ERZBERBEEFHEHSM  Analysis of cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
SRAT &S B M Bl 4 Bank balances and cash 7,405 7,221
SRATIE L Bank overdrafts (11,772) (13,968)
(4,367) (6,747)
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B E - FT—Epy H=+HIFFE/E  For the year ended 30 April 2014

R —Y4E —_F—=
2014 2013
M T#n T
NOTES HK$°000 HK$°000
I i Bh B A Non-current assets
Mg A F 2 & Investments in subsidiaries 14 5 5
B Current assets
JRE WS 5 g A ) R I Amounts due from subsidiaries 15 127,685 121,694
JE s — K 2 7 2 G A T Amount due from a joint venture
I of a subsidiary 20 8 -
TAMTHRIE ~ $ie 4 S HAh B &% Prepayments, deposits and other current assets 25 101 171
JE AR ] RV HAREIE Current tax recoverable 45 46
SRATHS B M Bl 4 Bank balances and cash 26 4 2,011
127,843 123,922
i B £ 0 Current liabilities
JREASY 6 g A ) R I Amounts due to subsidiaries 15 2,442 2,442
JIRE A B 5 LA B £+ 3 T Trade and other payables 27 453 646
2,895 3,088
i ) Net current assets 124,948 120,834
8 A A Total net assets 124,953 120,839
Je AR B fiti i Capital and reserves
JieAs Share capital 32 13,843 11,198
fifi s Reserves 33 111,110 109,641
HE 2 J0H Total equity 124,953 120,839
BRI bl
SO YU SHING WOO SIU LUN
FFE FHE
Director Director
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GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
(the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information in the

annual report.

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of scaffolding and
fitting and services, management contracting services, and other services for

construction and buildings work.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars

(“HKS$”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which include
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

b) Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except for certain investment properties which are measured at fair

values.

The principal accounting policies and methods of computation used in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 April
2014 are consistent with those adopted in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2013, except for the adoption

of the new and revised HKFRSs as explained in ¢) below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

¢) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards

In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30

April 2014, the Group has applied, for the first time, the following amendment
to standards issued by the HKICPA.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKEFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 Amendments

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Government
Loans

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements
Joint Arrangements
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12 — Transition Guidance

Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint

Ventures

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Mine

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
issued in June 2012
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

c)

Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (Continued)

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of amendments to
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12 and HKFRS 13, the adoption

of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on the

consolidated financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as

follows:

@

The amendments to HKFRS 7 “Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities” introduce new disclosures in respect of
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. Those new disclosures
are required for all recognised financial instruments that are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation” and
those that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement
or similar agreement that covers similar financial instruments and
transactions, irrespective of whether the financial instruments are set off
in accordance with HKAS 32. The adoption of the amendments does
not have an impact on the consolidated financial statements because
the Group has not offset financial instruments, nor has it entered into a
master netting arrangement or similar agreement which is subject to the

disclosures of HKFRS 7 during the period presented.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

c)

(b)

(©)

Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (Continued)

HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements” that addresses the accounting for consolidated
financial statements and addresses the issues in HK(SIC)-Int 12
“Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities”. It establishes a single control
model used for determining which entities are consolidated. To meet
the definition of control in HKFRS 10, an investor must have (a) power
over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over
the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns. The changes
introduced by HKFRS 10 require management of the Group to exercise

significant judgement to determine which entities are controlled.

As a result of the application of HKFRS 10, the Group has changed
the accounting policy with respect to determining which investees are
controlled by the Group. The application of HKFRS 10 does not change
any of the consolidation conclusions of the Group in respect of its

involvement with investees as at 1 May 2013.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures” and
HK(SIC)-Int 13 “Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers”. It describes the accounting for joint
arrangements with joint control. It addresses only two forms of joint
arrangements, i.e., joint operations and joint ventures, and removes the
option to account for joint ventures using proportionate consolidation.
The classification of joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 depends on
the parties’ rights and obligations arising from the arrangements. A joint
operation is a joint arrangement whereby the joint operators have rights
to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of the arrangement and is
accounted for on a line-by-line basis to the extent of the joint operators’
rights and obligations in the joint operation. A joint venture is a joint
arrangement whereby the joint venturers have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement and is required to be accounted for using the equity
method in accordance with HKAS 28 (2011).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

c)

(d)

Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (Continued)

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the classification
of the Group’s investments in joint arrangements in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 11, and concluded that the Group’s investments
in joint arrangements, which were previously classified as jointly-
controlled entities under HKAS 31 and were accounted for using the
equity method, should be classified as joint ventures under HKFRS 11
and be accounted for using the equity method. The application of HKFRS
11 does not change the accounting for investments in joint ventures as at
1 May 2013.

HKFRS 12 sets out the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and structured entities previously included in
HKAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”, HKAS 31
“Interests in Joint Ventures”” and HKAS 28 “Investments in Associates”.
It also introduces a number of new disclosure requirements for these
entities. Details of the disclosures for subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates are included in the notes to the consolidated financial

statements.

HKEFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single source
of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across
HKFRSs. The standard does not change the circumstances in which
the Group is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on
how fair value should be applied where its use is already required or
permitted under other HKFRSs. HKFRS 13 is applied prospectively
and the adoption has had no material impact on the Group’s fair value
measurements. As a result of the guidance in HKFRS 13, the policies for
measuring fair value have been amended. Additional disclosures required
by HKFRS 13 for the fair value measurements of investment properties
and financial instruments are included in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.



2. FEFHBUR @)
d)  HE=RHAIE KA E

L A S A Y U A R A B B R R R
A w) BT HAE R R R B TS B
KM RERE - AR WA KBS Z B
B R o A A A BR (B T AR R JER L K
L AR BT B BRI AR i & B2 A A R 2R A
s A SRR BCE A 5 i AR AR IR G )
Be S R R T B A1 o 0 B 2 R o B IR 2R T i
IR RS AR o

Al et AR B AR R 42 8 A A A SR YA T P A o
B atihat BRI BT 2 W E AR
BRI 52 30 ] R R AR BRAB T > S A8 AT 3B i
PEN S bt 2 ) S CHE P &R ]
I RERBAH BRAERT o

OB AR B EE  BOR LAl
R~ R KA o

B

R 2 EFH R S > EEOME N
OB MBS R N R 2 SR B
B2 I o

W 2 e 2

BRI 4 SR A A - AH I PR 52
T kg - 56 LA o ik i 2% ke
A B A AR B S8 D AR 2 T 23 LT i
ZIEH E TR -

HEAIE B8 IR ¥

JIT A AR A T T s 4R T ke R A S R
FE > M LURE R s ) AT VR AT AT B 2 e 4R
Ry o i RE W] HE R Y AR S B T R R > 2R
AR AR SR A v M) 14 AT R IR ] A 7K SP DA R oK
AT w1 W A ) F RSB o

ZT—NEFHR  Annual Report 2014

Aok B YU 5 0 B i

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
d) Significant judgements and estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the directors of the Company to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The directors have considered the development, selection and disclosure of the

Group’s critical accounting policies and estimates.
Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, the directors have
made the following judgements which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
Revenue recognition

When a contract is judged to be a construction contract, revenue is recognised
using the percentage of completion method. The percentage of completion
method is made by reference to the stage of completion of projects determined
based on the proportion of contract costs incurred to date and the estimated

costs to complete.
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of

future taxable profit together with future tax planning strategies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
d) Significant judgements and estimates (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Deferred tax assets (Continued)

The Group has tax loss carry forwards amounting to approximately
HK$108,662,000 (2013: HK$29,916,000), HK$63,037,000 (2013: Nil) of
which relates to a subsidiary and has been recognised as deferred tax assets
amounting to approximately HK$10,410,000 (2013: Nil), following the
recent development of the subsidiary and future taxable profit determined by
the Group and, given that the losses can be carried forward indefinitely, the

directors believe that it is possible the tax losses can be utilized in the future.

If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax assets, profit
would increase by approximately HK$7,528,000 (2013: HK$4,936,000).

Further details on deferred taxes are disclosed in note 31.
Estimates and assumptions
(i)  Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 30 April 2014, the carrying amount of goodwill was
fully impaired. Details of the impairment of goodwill are disclosed in
note 16.

(ii)  Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes allowances for bad and doubtful debts when there is
objective evidence that receivables balances are impaired. The balances
of the receivables are based on the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the effective rate computed at initial recognition.
The directors have exercised a considerable amount of judgement in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each customer.
If the financial conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowance may be required.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

d)

Significant judgements and estimates (Continued)

Estimates and assumptions (Continued)

(iii)  Revaluation of investment properties

()

)

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes
in fair values being recognised in profit or loss. The Group engaged
independent valuation specialists to determine fair value as at 30 April
2014. The fair value is determined using market comparison approach
by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties on a price
per square foot basis using market observable transactions of similar
properties and adjust to reflect the conditions and locations of the subject

properties.

The determined fair value of the investment properties is most sensitive

to the market price per square foot.

Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at
the date at which they are granted. Estimating fair value for share-
based payments requires determining the most appropriate valuation
model for a grant of equity instruments, which is dependent on the terms
and conditions of the grant. This also requires determining the most
appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of
the option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about
them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for

share-based payments are disclosed in note 34.

Construction contracts

The Group’s profit or loss arising from construction contracts is
determined by reference to the latest available budgets of individual
construction contract prepared by the Group and based on management’s
best estimates and judgements. Provision is made for foreseeable losses

as soon as they are anticipated by management.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
e) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of

the Company and its subsidiaries made up to the end of each reporting period.

Total comprehensive income and expenses of a subsidiary is attributed to the
owners of the company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results

in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss as incurred. At the acquisition date, the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are generally recognised at their fair

value at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in the consolidated

profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event
of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on

a transaction-by-transaction basis.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated profit or loss from the effective date of acquisition or up to

the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
e) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by

other members of the Group.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances between group

enterprises are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and net assets of the Group’s

subsidiaries.

f)  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment include land and buildings. Property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the term of the lease

Plant and machinery 20%
Metal tubes and catwalks 10%
Gondolas over 9 years
Gondolas’ related equipment 10%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives
on the same basis as owned assets or the term of the relevant lease, whichever

is shorter.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in the consolidated profit or loss in the year in

which the item is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
g) Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of

each reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties

are included in the consolidated profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property
are recognised in the consolidated profit or loss in the year of the retirement or

disposal.

h) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has significant influence,
but not control or joint control, over its management, including participation in the

financial and operating policy decisions.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the
associate, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interest that, in substance, forms part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses

are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
i)  Joint Ventures

Joint venture arrangements which involve the establishment of a separate entity
in which venturers have joint control over the economic activity of the entity are

referred to as joint ventures.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are incorporated in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investment in joint ventures are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the joint
ventures, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses
of a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in that joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of that joint venture.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group, unrealised
profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the joint
venture, except to the extent that unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses is

recognised.
j)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights

(held by the group and other parties) are considered.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit or loss to the
extent of dividends received and receivable. The Company’s investments in

subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

k) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(1) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value

of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(ii) the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable

assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised immediately in the

consolidated profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising
on a business combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups
of cash generating units, that is expected to benefit for the synergies of the

combination and is tested annually for impairment.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is

expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is indication that the unit
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to the other
assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
assets in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the
consolidated profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not

reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on

disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
I) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recognised at their fair values at the acquisition

date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised

on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

At the end of the reporting period , the Group reviews the carrying amounts of
its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating

units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for

which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised immediately in the consolidated profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years . A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the consolidated

profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
m) Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing
for a non-financial asset is required other than deferred tax assets, inventories,
financial assets, investment properties and goodwill, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the value
in use of the asset or cash-generating unit to which it belongs and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the

cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for in

accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of reporting period as to whether there is
any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount
is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset, other
than goodwill, is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the
consolidated profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that

revalued asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
n) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is

calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

o) Financial instruments

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets include amounts due from associates and joint
ventures, amounts due from customers for contract work, deposits, trade and
other receivables, retention monies receivables, pledged bank deposit, bank

balances and cash. Financial assets are recognised on the trade date.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans and
receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Any changes in their value are recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets expire or are transferred and substantially all of the

risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.

An assessment for impairment is undertaken at least at the end of each reporting
period, whether or not there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. Impairment loss on loans and receivables
is recognised when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all the amounts due to it in accordance with the original terms of the
receivables. The amount of the impairment loss is determined as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future

cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
0) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

The Group entered into a foreign currency forward contract in a prior year
which is considered to be a derivative contract giving rise to a financial asset.
Derivative contracts are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss and
initially recognised at fair value when the contracts are entered into. Subsequent
changes in fair value at the end of each reporting period are recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include other loans, amounts due to customers
for contract work, trade and other payables, retention monies payables
obligations under finance leases, bank loans and overdrafts. Financial liabilities
are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of

the instrument.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation

specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

p) Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is included in

finance costs in the consolidated profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

q)

ii)

iii)

Leased assets

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are

classified as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the
amounts representing the fair value of the leased assets, or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments of such assets, are included
in property, plant and equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under finance lease.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the cost of assets over
the term of the relevant leases or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the assets, the life of the assets. Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out as
below. Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to the
consolidated profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period. Contingent rentals,
if any, are charged to the consolidated profit or loss in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to the consolidated profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to
be derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives received are recognised
in the consolidated profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals, if any, are charged to the consolidated

profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

r) Foreign currencies

The functional currency and the presentation currency of the Company is the
Hong Kong dollars. Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded using
the functional currency rates ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
All differences are taken to the consolidated profit or loss. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the

exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currency of overseas subsidiaries are currencies other than the
Hong Kong dollars. At the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into the presentation currency of the Company at
the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period, and their statements
of comprehensive income are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
included in other comprehensive income and accumulated exchange reserve.
On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised
in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries are translated into the Hong Kong dollar at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong

Kong dollar at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

s) Revenue recognition and amounts due from/to customers for

contract work
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.

Where the outcome of a construction and buildings maintenance contract can
be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period, as
measured by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to
date relative to the estimated total contract costs. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that the amounts can

be measured reliably and their receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction and buildings maintenance contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of
contract costs incurred that probably will be recoverable. Contract costs are

recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue,

the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as an amount due from
customers for contract work. For contracts where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the
surplus is shown as an amount due to customers for contract work. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position, as a liability, as advances received. Amounts
billed for work performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in the

consolidated statement of financial position under trade and other receivables.
Sales of gondolas are recognised when title passes to customers.

Provision of services revenue is recognised when services are rendered.
Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which

is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the

expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
t)  Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

u) Retirement benefit costs

i) Short term employee benefits and contribution to defined contribution

plan

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes for those employees who are eligible to participate.
Contributions are charged to the consolidated profit or loss as they are

paid/become payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme.

ii)  Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees of the Company and vested prior to
1 May 2005

The Group did not recognise the financial effect of these share options
until they were exercised. Upon the exercise of the share options, the
resulting shares issued are recorded as additional share capital at the
nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded in the share premium
account. Options which lapsed or cancelled prior to their exercise date

are removed from the register of outstanding options.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
u) Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

Share options granted to employees of the Company on or after 1 May
2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight
line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity

(share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to retained profits.
v) Taxation
Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated profit of loss because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is

accounted for using the liability method.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities

in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
v)  Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the

temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and it is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated profit or loss, except
when it relates to other comprehensive items, in which case the deferred tax is

also dealt with in the other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current

tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
for investment properties that are measured using the fair value model in
accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment Property”, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model of the group whose
business objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather than through sale. If
the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for
such investment properties are measured in accordance with the above general
principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected manner as to how the

properties will be recovered).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
w) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent short term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which were within three months of
maturity when acquired, less advances from banks which are repayable within
three months from the date of the advance and which form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

X) Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the

Group if that person:-
(1) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i1) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the

Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies: —

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group.

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other

entity is a member).

(iii)) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

x) Related parties (Continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of

employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in

(a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of

a parent of the entity).

3. BEH TURNOVER
A
Group
&4 “E A
2014 2013
T#T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
PR S T i TARFE LD Contract revenue in respect of construction and buildings
IREs 2 A A work for the provision of
— PSR4 AR S — scaffolding services 83,040 117,371
— RGN s — fitting out services 14,745 2,341
G IRB Management contracting services 1,843 55
MATAES - B e Gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment
HEIE SR 2 T RAHE RS installation and maintenance services 12,333 6,182

111,961 125,949
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

(A) Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into three
operating divisions: (i) scaffolding and fitting out services for construction
and buildings work, (ii) management contracting services for construction
and buildings work, and (iii) gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment
installation and maintenance services.

Segment information about these businesses is presented below.

e Sl 3 2014
HHEmlas Rz THE PROFIT OR LOSS IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
R
Bl A K
REER BEER A 15 25
SN SN M2 &ER
PefE AR birdtiegii A R B
Bk 15 IR FRIMRB Gondolas,
Scaffolding and Management parapet railings
fitting out contracting and access
services for services for equipment
construction construction installation and
and buildings  and buildings maintenance Ao A
work work services Unallocated Consolidated
Tkt Tt Filon Filtoo Tkt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000
et REVENUE
HB AN Total external sales 97,785 1,843 12,333 - 111,961
AR SEGMENT RESULTS
EF Gross profit 5,848 287 3,572 - 9,707
BERATHER Operating and administrative
expenses (68,941) (221) (1,399) (4,451) (75,012)
(63,093) 66 2,173 (4,451) (65,305)
HAetA Other income 1,058
BEWEZNTFHE Increase in fair value of

m investment properties 620
HEME - WE K& Loss on disposal of property,

Y& plant and equipment (183)
il A Finance costs (2,093)
A 2 B Impairment of goodwill (3,138)
FRBL RIS 18 Loss before taxation (69,041)
BLIH Taxation 7,572
AR MR Loss for the year

(61,469)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A) Business segments (Continued)

e Sl lI1E: 2014
&R BB IR DL CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
M LIER -
Il A
PREER BEER BN AR 25
BEIR BT M2 &% Rk
ReOLHA R 2 R 30911873
BORG#02 IR BRI Gondolas,
Scaffolding and Management parapet railings
fitting out contracting and access
services for services for equipment
construction construction installation and
and buildings  and buildings ~ maintenance Ao B
work work services Unallocated Consolidated
Tkt T Tl Filtoo Tkt
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
bog73 ASSETS
DA Segment assets 115,292 15,307 7,526 45,112 183,237
TR 2/ i) 3R Amounts due from associates 34 - - - 34
il ey = /NG O Amounts due from joint ventures 7 - - 8 15
B A Total assets 115,333 15,307 7,526 45,120 183,286
fafi LIABILITIES
nEARK Segment liabilities 85,827 348 2,180 1,762 90,117
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A) Business segments (Continued)

e S l11E: 3 2014
Hfth & B} OTHER INFORMATION
M TR -
TREER BHEER DR R
R RETLR  REHMgE
SOLMA Pt T A W
TR 05 & HR Gondolas,
Scaffolding and Management  parapet railings
fitting out contracting and access
services for services for equipment
construction construction  installation and
and buildings  and buildings maintenance A4 e
work work services Unallocated Consolidated
T T T Tt T
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BB Capital expenditure (8,628) - (220) - (8,848)
il Depreciation (4,090) - (390) (314) (4,794)
SRR Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (268) - - - (268)
REWE P A4 LR Write-off of amounts due from
I Z M customers for contract work (56,040) (36) - - (56,076)
FNFOR - #a Rk Write-off of prepayments, deposits
HAbIiE) B AR and other current assets - - - (150) (150)
A B Impairment of goodwill - - (3,138) - (3,138)
BEWEZ N TERE Increase in fair value of
investment properties - - - 620 620
HEZE ~ BiE K52 BEH Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (183) - - - (183)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A) Business segments (Continued)

e S o 2013
HAEmRasRZ R THE PROFIT OR LOSS IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ML -
Wi R K
REER R BN AEN &5
jig AR EETH M2 ZER
SEHEHIARE 2 FefL B A R B
Bk e M B #RB Gondolas,
Scaffolding and Management parapet railings
fitting out contracting and access
services for services for equipment
construction construction installation and
and buildings  and buildings ~ maintenance Ao B
work work services Unallocated Consolidated
Ti#T T Tl Tl Tt
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
et REVENUE
MESGE Total external sales 119,712 55 6,182 = 125,949
AR SEGMENT RESULTS
EF,/(ER) Gross profit/(loss) 17,420 (71) 1,859 - 19,208
BERATHE R Operating and
administrative expenses (25,008) (62) (4,575) (3,126) (32,771)
(7,588) (133) (2,716) (3,126) (13,563)
HAleA Other income 1,570
BEWELNTH Increase in fair value of

| investment properties 6,410
HEWEE - WE Gain on disposal of property,

Y& e plant and equipment 6
BB AA Finance costs (1,612)
JRESC A A R Impairment of amounts due from

BB HIHZ A associates and joint ventures (6,779)
WL i 12 Loss before taxation (13,968)
BiH Taxation (661)
AR N Loss for the year (14,629)
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4. EER @) SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(A) ¥ETH5E ) (A) Business segments (Continued)
—B—=% 2013
fi A AR DL R CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B TR -
B i ¢

RRER BHEER BN Aefs 25
HETH B LR MZZHERk
SROEHNAL Ry Al IR B
BORG#05 IR f R Gondolas,

Scaffolding and Management parapet railings

fitting out contracting and access
services for services for equipment
construction construction installation and
and buildings  and buildings ~ maintenance Ao A
work work services Unallocated Consolidated
Tkt T Tl Filtoo Tkt
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
boq73 ASSETS
NEERE Segment assets 132,342 14,400 9,713 52,437 208,892
fafi LIABILITIES

NEA R Segment liabilities 18,369 140 2,116 60,293 80,918
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4. HER @)

(A) ¥ETH5E )

(A) Business segments (Continued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

- Sy 2013
Hfth & B} OTHER INFORMATION
M TR -
BEER WRER Btk
R RETLR  REHMgE
SOLMA Pt T A W
BRE R B s H R Gondolas,
Scaffolding and Management  parapet railings
fitting out contracting and access
services for services for equipment
construction construction  installation and
and buildings  and buildings maintenance A4 e
work work services Unallocated Consolidated
Tt T T# T# Tt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BB Capital expenditure (8,534) = (1,009) o) (9,550)
#iE Depreciation (3,552) - (328) (314) (4,194)
RS Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (10,350) = (3,102) = (13,452)
TR A 7 % Impairment of amounts due from
BEATHIAZBE associates and joint ventures (2,389) (117) - 4277) (6,779)
BEWEZ N TERM Increase in fair value of
investment properties - - - 6,410 6,410
HEMZE ~ BE i 2 1eE  Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 6 - - - 6
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(B) Geographical segments
The Group operates with customers situated in Hong Kong and Macau. The

following table provides an analysis of the revenue, carrying amounts of

segment assets and capital expenditure by geographical markets:—

ig N SR B 2 B 3
e Carrying amount of Capital expenditure
Revenue segment assets incurred during the year
e ZR-=F ZFNE —F= ZENE CEFEF
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Tt T T# THT Tt T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000

i Hong Kong
it Macau

(C) EEEFER

AR > AR A (ZF— =5 W) %
A A S T A 4 A RIS AR 10% DA _E Y 2% AT
25y o A& H %S EEE 4 A S Wit 19 B
T

111,644 126,249 166,967 193,269 8,848 9,550
317 (300) 16,319 15,623 - =
111,961 125,949 183,286 208,892 8,848 9,550

(C) Information on major customers

During the year, the Group had transactions with two (2013: two) customers
who each contributed over 10% of the Group’s total gross revenue for the year.

A summary of revenue earned from each of these major customers is set out

below:
it 11 AR
2014 2013
T THIT
HKS$°000 HKS$°000
KE— Customer 1 44,303 61,273
KE Customer 2 16,246 =
KPP = Customer 3 - 14,210

60,549 75,483
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5. HABA OTHER INCOME
AL
Group
- S 111 E1 3 “E A
2014 2013
F#T T
HK$’000 HK$°000
AN Sl a5 > TRAR Foreign exchange gains, net 2 17
FIE YA Interest income 8 10
AU > FIBRZE S Rental income, net of outgoings of nil 1,002 899
HRETE A Sundry income 46 328
SRR [E] Reversal of bad debts - 22
LAt A R T 43 ) Write-back of other payables - 200
EATI A 7 BB Write-back of amounts due to an associate
N ) R TE A 1] and a joint venture - 94
1,058 1,570
6. RLE WA FINANCE COSTS
y: = L]
Group
ZE Y —E—=
2014 2013
F#T THIT
HK$’000 HK$°000
$RAT RS Interest on bank loans
— JEJA HAR N 2R — wholly repayable within five years 1,030 953
— JHIR AR R S HUE R — wholly repayable beyond five years 438 169
oA BEFRAE Interest on other loans 580 393
VAL A AR 2 F1LS, Interest on obligations under finance leases 93 107
2,141 1,622
B B AREAR B Less: Amount capitalised in construction
JE A 4% contracts (48) (10)
2,093 1,612
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7. B TAXATION
A4 [
Group
SEeWE %=
2014 2013
T#T THIT
HKS$°000 HK$°000
Pl TE ELHE - Taxation comprises:
TS BE Hong Kong Profits Tax
AR Current year 49 28
SEHTAFE EEREHE A 2 Underprovision in prior years 2,235 305
2,284 333
IEFERBLIH (PFEE31) Deferred tax (Note 31)
AR Current year (9,856) 328
(7,572) 661

T s I A5 B0 AR 45 A1 B 7 v A T R B Uik A1) A
16.5% 2 Bi R (—F—=

FHT A A 452 7 457 7R ML T 7R A0 A TR B A4
FEBL 2 MERRBLE A > B St % B E AT i A

(CF—=4F ) o

1 16.5%)

16.5%).

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made at the rate of 16.5% on

the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2013:

No Macau Complementary Tax has been provided as the Group had no

assessable profits subject to such tax during the year (2013: Nil).
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7. BeH ()

AR il 18 BEL A e T S 4 2 T 7 2 B TR 2 3
HRANT -

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Loss before taxation is reconciled to taxation in profit or loss in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income as follows:—

A4 1]
Group
e Sl 12 SR
2014 2013
T#x T
HK$°000 HKS$’000
B Hi s 18 Loss before taxation (69,041) (13,968)
A ] ) A [ ] 2 B Tax at tax rate applicable in the relevant jurisdictions (11,397) (1,760)
VNGIE v Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
B e 28 tax purpose 848 1,385
DHE BB Z WA Z B 5 288 Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (102) (1,097)
KT MR BLIREHZ Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 880 2,132
25 5 288
5 R R R R Tax effect of utilisation of deductible temporary
BT IR 22 il 2 B AGS e 288 differences previously not recognised 21) (123)
6y 4t R S AR R 2 B TE S 4R Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised as) =
JERITAF FE A 2 Underprovision in prior years 2,235 305
HoAth Others - (181)
BiIE Taxation (7,572) 661
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8. #HINIEEME DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(a) HHEME (a) Directors’ emoluments
A4 Group
Bt L% KRR ARG B LS
BRlkR Lai  #%kB  Kong SoWang YuYeung SoWang xS BSW Lam

SoYu Yuen Mei, Woo  Kam Bon, Hoi,  Chun, W Fmg Yemng  Kwok it
Shing  Rebecca SiuLun ~ Wang  Edward  Stephen Edmond NgTang KaShuen PoChin  Wing Total
T#n  T#x  T#x TEx Ti#c T T TEx THx TEx TEx TEx
HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$°000 HKS$'000 HKS’000 HKS'000 HKS’000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000

“EmE 2014
ik Fee - - - - - - - - 90 90 90 m
HA - Other emoluments:
o R AR Salaries and other benefits 319 143 552 94 550 345 51 15 - - -8
e Contribution to retirements
benefits schemes 15 15 15 15 13 15 2 - - - - 90
B4 Total emoluments 3434 1448 567 939 563 360 5 15 Ll 9 90 7,649
it IE  BER ARl B4
BRl Lai  #DEE Kong SoWang YuYemng W% B Lam
SoYu  Yuen Mei, Woo Kam Bon, Hoi, Fung Yeung Kwok &t
Shing  Rebecca  SiuLun Wang  Edward  Stephen  KaShuen  Po Chin Wing Total
Tt  Tr T#x  Thr TEx  TEx  TEx T Tz TEx
HKS’000  HKS’000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000  HKS$000
“Z-—= 2013
fid Fee - - - - - - 88 88 88 264
Tt - Other emoluments:
HERIMERA  Salaries and other benefits 2,826 1,440 536 909 570 360 - - - 66l
RFEAFTEMES  Contribution to retirements
benefits schemes 15 15 15 15 15 15 - - - 90
BALHZERE  Bquity-settled share option
ER expenses 88 88 ) ) ) 21 21 21 21 386

s Total emoluments 299 158 593 966 67 396 109 109 09 781
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8. EHKIEEME @

(b) EEM%

WE F—P4ENH =+ HIRERE > AEHL
LRI LRI A (TR A )
RN FES > HMEFEERI R bk 4 A B g
RERMFES(a) o AEFEHRT —%4 (ZF—=
—%) NEZ HRE ST

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Employees’ emoluments

During the year ended 30 April 2014, the five highest paid individuals included
four directors (2013: four), details of whose emoluments are set out in note
8(a) to the consolidated financial statements above. The emoluments of the one

(2013: one) remaining individual for the year are as follows:—

74 1]
Group
SRomE sk
2014 2013
T#x THTT
HK$°000 HK$°000
i S A A A Salaries and other benefits 600 840
R K Contribution to retirements
benefits schemes 15 15
LRI (AN Discretionary bonus - 70
615 925

BN — 44 JF 8 g A 2 N A R
T

The emoluments of the one remaining highest paid individual other than

directors are within the following bands:

SEomE F oSk
2014 2013

ZEF 1,000,000 # T

(c) AR > AN Sl A o] A Ao 2 B
37 J R BT SCAHE AT 2/ 2 A A
B B SO A R 2 S8 B A 2 A 1

Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 1

(¢) During the year, the Group did not pay the directors or any of the five
highest paid individuals any emoluments for inducement to join the

Group or upon joining the Group or compensation for loss of office.
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9. AEEEH LOSS FOR THE YEAR
A4 M
Group
e Sl 12 R4
2014 2013
Tt THETT
HK$°000 HK$°000
A4 i 18 Loss for the year has been arrived at after
E4nkk(FEA) NFI45IE charging/(crediting):
SRR Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 268 10,350
R A R b Write-off of trade receivables - 91
B % 5 & 4 T AR IE 2 iR Write-off of amounts due from customers for contract work 56,076 3,011
P2 WU E Impairment of goodwill 3,138 -
B R Write-off of inventories 10 -
TANTRRIE ~ Fed B AR Write-off of prepayments, deposits and other current assets 150 -
2% BT <5 Auditor’s remuneration 795 931
Tl R o B S 2 A LA Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 1,090 1,441
i Depreciation
BB EE Owned assets 4,372 4,102
DARIE R KR 2 Assets held under finance leases 422 92
4,794 4,194
B DTG IR Less: Amount capitalised in construction contracts
B HIENL AR (3,999) (3,140)
795 1,054
LRI ~ R Kz Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,
et (i 2s) plant and equipment 183 (6)
Tt BT TR 2 Minimum lease payments for operating leases
IR 4 in respect of land and buildings 1,375 1,154
B DT E AR R Less: Amount capitalised in construction contracts
B KB AR (1,256) (1,036)
119 118
BT (HEHEHME) Staff costs including directors’ emoluments
— A B 2 W IR 2 — Equity-settled share option expenses - 476
— DA Aty XS24 — Settled by other means 35,771 38,999
35,771 39,475
B DA R Less: Amount capitalised in construction contracts
B HIEAL AR (16,022) (21,928)
19,749 17,547
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. Jix B

ERFARREANARRE R E % —PU4FEN A
ST HIEEEREE -F-=FNA=1H Ik
FEZBE -

11. &8

o IR AN e 48 T AR R A A AR R AR R
A AL 548 & 3L 461,275,000 76 (=& — =
4F 1 14,219,000 70 ) K AR A B B AT I i 0
o HE SF- 2 B #01,177,990,000 B (& — = 4F ¢
1,119,762,000 %) 515 o

R A 4T TR L 28 AT 8 S P e 2 R Tl
15 B S S > I S B A B 2 51
Ay Rl ER TR

DIVIDEND

No dividend has been proposed by the directors nor paid by the Company for
the year ended 30 April 2014 and the year ended 30 April 2013.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the loss attributable to
the equity holders of the Company totalling approximately HK$61,275,000
(2013: HK$14,219,000) for the year and on the weighted average number of
1,177,990,000 (2013: 1,119,762,000) ordinary shares outstanding during the

year.

No adjustment has been made to the loss per share amount presented for the
period in respect of the share options that are fully exercised during the year as
the impact on the share options has an anti-dilutive effect on the loss per share

amount presented.
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12. #EWE INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
N
Group
THIT
HKS$°000
W E—4FERH—H At 1 May 2012 29,340
AR Z 3 Increase in fair value 6,410
REE—-=FMH =1H At 30 April 2013 35,750
ISFEZ B Increase in fair value 620
N ZE—MAENA=1H

A AR B ALIA B s 2 OB W 3 4k R A+
H o WARPREEFAA AR o AL E 2 FE
B UL E BTG T 405 e ARSI AR £
HEYHE R _E—ENA =1TH - &Y
2 2 IR TH {H £ 36,370,000 %5 76 ( =& — =4 ¢
35,750,000 %5 7G) °

A
Al B R AR 307 0 7 W A A PR ) 2 AT S Al
B> UEEREYER T NFER T =
A =+ HEAFE o SEY) RN E
i 2 A SR A HAT ©

At 30 April 2014 36,370

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Hong Kong, held under a
long term lease and rented out under operating leases. The Group’s investment
properties are measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties. At 30 April 2014, the carrying
amount of such investment properties amounted to HK$36,370,000 (2013:
HK$35,750,000).

Fair value hierarchy

An independent valuation was performed by the valuer, Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited, to determine the fair value of investment properties as at 30
April 2014 and 2013. The revaluation gains recognised in respect of investment

properties are included in the consolidated profit or loss.
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12. BE&EME @)
O AR ZE ] (1)

TR EIVE AL ER G AL L A FERHE
B ZER N FH

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s investment properties

carried at fair value, by valuation method.

R HAENA=THP
AP A
Fair value measurements as at
30 April 2014 categorised into

P 8 vl 5 R K At W) HAAA
10 5 2 8 £ B BR B HR
/e g IR 2 (5B—#) (58 —#%) (BB=#)
PWH=1H Quoted prices in Significant Significant
M2 P active markets for other unobservable
Fair value at identical assets observable inputs inputs
30 April 2014 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Fitsst FHE Fibsst Fibsst
AL Group HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
KB P PAAEHR Recurring fair value
measurements
B"EYE - — Investment properties:-
— T —FUs — Commercial — Hong Kong 36,370 - 36,370 -

A G B 2 SRR T S SO R ) o O DL AL
B 2 e RN T (EL AR o A gt -

WE T —ENA = HIEFRE » 55— H
5 AR [ S R MR 2 B B A
=&

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the

transfer.

During the year ended 30 April 2014, there were no transfers between Level 1

and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.
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12. BEW¥E m)

A5 4 1 (RS
RAEALEBMN L EYRC R T —MWEMNA
= R ST S Al L R AR U AT
A PR FIAG(E > 24T 7 2 0 2 K B R B2 g
([ 3 ] 2 2 ) 6 B 1) T 7 o 0 6 i 2
(TR ) 2 M E > WHEA B ENE
6 A A A A I [ A (L S P B

7S 9] ) S 5 4 S ) el 8 S Al A 5
A AT AL o P 40 S B St i P ot £
(BB B AG B A5 A T Wl

5B AR P A B RN Z Al (A B 00 %
7N 8

TG (E HIAE 9 7 v BEE W2 P (E 9 4%
T35 BRI 58 22 25 4R T U 26 9 T 355 B4
52 oy S A WA 4 DA S WA Y 4 256 2 AR L S i B L
75 RAB S J ik 2 W) HE ey 200 A 45 1
T E

A0 DU A 1 AR BE BT R A (LB 0 - AT A
BeEYEM = o HBRAG ] i B T -

AREE B Y EHB L Y EH S A (T F
YRR LS LA AL 2 1,002,000 %G (=
ZF— Z4F 1 899,000% 70) - A B wEAE HUR M RE
38 o FAF A 4 JE [R5 W S A 2 H R KRR
ﬁq °

1% Gy 2 £ HEHE 30 DL B T A 4 1 A 8R4 T i
& (A HE36) -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Valuation processes of the Group

All of the Group’s investment properties were revalued as at 30 April 2014
by a firm of independent professionally qualified valuers, Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited, a member of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors
(“RICS”) and the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS”), and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation properties in

the relevant locations.

The Group’s financial controller reviews the valuations performed by the
independent valuer for financial reporting purposes. The financial controller
holds discussions with the independent valuer on the valuation assumptions and

valuation results.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of investment properties located in Hong Kong which were
tenanted as at the date of valuation, is determined using market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties on a price
per square foot basis using market observable transactions of similar properties

and adjust to reflect the conditions and locations of the subject properties.

There has been no change from the valuation techniques used in the prior year.
For all investment properties, their current use equates to the highest and best

use.

The property rental income earned by the Group from its investment properties,
all of which are leased out under operating leases, amounted to HK$1,002,000
(2013: HK$899,000), further details of which are included in note 38. There
are no direct operating expenses arising on the investment properties in either

years.

The investment properties have been pledged to secure bank facilities granted

to the Group. (see note 36)

2k
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13. W3E ~ Fim ikt PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
N Group
SBE B TER 3114
ML W R SRR KE
Kbk T as Metal  Gondolas ¥{H  Furniture
Leasehold land Plantand tubes and and related Motor and At
and buildings machinery  catwalks equipment  vehicles fixtures Total
Tikr  Tkr  Fkx FEx Tx Tk T
HK$'000 HK$°000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS$000 HKS000
bizli COST
AN F-CHFHA—H At 1 May 2012 9,273 1,068 41,839 5,786 5,881 7,194 71,041
nNE Additions - - 7,175 1,009 1,311 55 9,550
HE Disposals = = = = (36) = (36)
AR ZAENA =1 At 30 April 2013 9273 1,068 49,014 6,795 7,156 7,249 80,555
WNE Additions - = 8,457 220 161 10 8,848
HE Disposals = = (19,842) = (303) - (20,145)
REF—NFENA=+H At 30 April 2014 9,273 1,068 37,629 7,015 7,014 7259 69258
?ﬁé DEPRECIATION
A F—-CHFHA—H At 1 May 2012 1,227 1,066 27,859 4,509 4,653 6442 45756
NG Provided for the year 229 1 2,924 245 674 121 4,194
A Eliminated on disposals = - - - (36) (36)
AR -ZENA =R At 30 April 2013 1,456 1,067 30,783 4754 5,291 6,563 49914
NG Provided for the year 229 1 3,569 307 573 115 4,794
A Eliminated on disposals = - (19,017) = (303) (19,320)
AR —JUEMA =A At 30 April 2014 1,685 1,068 15,335 5,061 5,561 6,678 35,388
IR T 5 NET CARRYING AMOUNTS
—JH4E A =1-H At 30 April 2014 7,588 - 2229 1,954 1,453 581 33,870
REZF—=FMA=1H At 30 April 2013 7,817 1 18,231 2,041 1,865 686 30,641

AAEE LA AR TR AN > DRI

ERASA -

"

VORI A =4 AR DR E AL A

A Z IR G E 2 IR TE 1 (E 4 45 902,000 #5 T

(%=

© 1,324,000 #7T)

AR i R M SR DL ISR T AR 4 Y

SRATRANE (FRfFE 36)

The leasehold land and buildings of the Group are situated in Hong Kong and

are held under long term leases.

At 30 April 2014, the net book values of motor vehicles of the Group include
HK$902,000 (2013: HK$1,324,000) in respect of assets held under finance

leases.

The leasehold land and buildings have been pledged to secure bank facilities

granted to the Group (see note 36).
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

A
Company
SEWE F Sk
2014 2013
Tt THETT
HK$°000 HKS$ 000
JE LR > R Unlisted shares, at cost 5 5
()= P P = (1 N Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:—
GRl WA
B AT R Pkt & A
Place of Jhe AR ZHAI FEEH
W 2 ENEREA incorporation/ Issued and fully Percentage of Principal
Subsidiary Form of legal entity operation  paid up share capital registered capital held activity
SEmE CF S
2014 2013
WLS (BVI) Limited AR AT BEELHE  LEk300378 T 100 100 B
Limited Company British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary HK$300,378 Investment holding
Talent Gain HRAT HBE LR L@ 780 T 100 100 BEER
International Limited Limited Company British Virgin [slands Ordinary HK$780 Investment holding

97

HRGS  RHHE A R 2 2 AP EEAE
TR AE BA 5 IR DL 2 A S R 2 BR TG B

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the investments in the
subsidiaries is not less than the carrying amount reflected in the statement of
financial position.

AR T AT 2 B 2 W e 1 A B 43 Details of particulars of indirectly held subsidiaries of the Company are set out

in note 43.
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WEWL~ (fF) Bt & 2 W 2 wk JH AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

JEL,” (A5F) B 2 | 2 R IE o A~ REEE The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
BIETR BRI o repayable on demand.
A2
Company
e Sl 112 CE AR
2014 2013
T#x T
HK$°000 HK$°000
JRE Sz o} & > ) 2 R Due from subsidiaries 158,624 132,097
B TR Less: Impairment losses (30,939) (10,403)
127,685 121,694
JREAST it A W) 2 3 Due to subsidiaries (2,442) (2,442)
16. F3E GOODWILL
2014 2013
F#t T
HK$°000 HK$°000
BRA COST 3,138 3,138
FFHRAR N 4E ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
HHA—H 1 May - =
BATERSCAIEN, T3] Impairment losses recognised 3,138 -
PWH=+H 30 April 3,138 =
G T 0 NET CARRYING AMOUNT - 3,138




16. RE2 @)

FH SETS A DR A 2 7 A M R i & T
WA % TS A UG R 2 Bl A B - P
AT — AR =+ H 2 BRI (R 3,138,000 15
I )5 7By e A B A ml 2 I AR A KB
i) 1% 65 TRHEAE 35 M 2 2 2 T HEAB IR s 2 B 4 e
A=A (TEAL ) o

A T A A 7 A T U (B R > B P R
B AT B Dol (EL T S IR5 B AR A T I (B

BE_E—ENHA=+HIFEER > REH
L R 5 P 2 W T {H 3,138,000 ¥ JCMEAE
2T -

17. EEEE

A ) 0 4 9 4 9
TET I BB 0 (O [ RE | MR R4
MR o BFBE A A H o S0 M
SCH + EL 969 9L G AT (TR o BRLEG » R
PN A = F BRI B R
TS0 F) o
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GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition,
to the cash generating units that are expected to benefit from that business
combination. The carrying amount of goodwill as of 30 April 2013 of
HK$3,138,000 was wholly allocated to cash-generating unit in gondolas and
parapet railings and assess equipment installation and maintenance services of

a subsidiary (the “Unit”).

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there

are indications that goodwill might be impaired.

During the year ended 30 April 2014, management of the Group determined
that the carrying amount of goodwill of HK$3,138,000 was to be fully

impaired.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets of the Group represent patents obtained in respect of
scaffolding systems (such as the “Pik-Lik” system) invented and developed
internally by Dr. So Yu Shing, the Chairman of the Group. Research and
development costs were expensed in the ordinary course of business of the
Group and were not separately traceable to any of the patents. Accordingly,

patents as at 30 April 2014 are shown at nil balance (2013: nil).

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

ASE

Group
SEoWE CF
2014 2013
Tt THETT
HK$°000 HKS$’000

B A T T (L

Share of net assets
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18. AW A w2 HER ) INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

A ZFE AR A =+ H o BiE s w256 Particulars of the associates at 30 April 2014 are as follows:—

T
A w Py B AT
JBe A Z THIHL LR 51
Proportion of
ES 7 BRI A nominal value of
ZRHETE X £ Hh B Fiks issued share capital
Form of Place of Ji& oy JE 3] held by the Company
W8 2 W A HE business incorporation/ Class of ZE g R =8 F B
Name of associate structure operation shares held 2014 2013 Principal activity
BM Technologies AT e R R % 36.36% 36.36% G R
Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands  Ordinary Investment holding
Wui Chun Building Al aA iR - 36.36% 36.36% O AR
Material Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary Dormant

A B AR B 2 W o W 2 BB ORI 81 An The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associates is set

T~ out below:—
A4 M
Group
SENE SRS
2014 2013
Ti#x TH#TT
HK$°000 HK$°000
ERELAE Total assets 15 51
=L v Total liabilities (53) (1,228)
=R eEeE Net liabilities (38) (1,177)
AL B AL M A ] 2 Group’s share of net assets
HEE FE of associates - =
i i Revenue - _
AR AR BE 16 A Profit for the year 1,083 29
AP JRE S A [ R A B A ) Group’s share of results of associates
R for the year* - _

< JIRE Ao 5 ) M 1 A R A A 4 1] 2 30 AR g The share of loss of associates are limited to the investment cost of the Group.
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

ASE

Group
S S
2014 2013
Tt THETT
HK$°000 HKS$ 000

B A T T (L

AR —MEMA=+H, 282G

Share of net assets

wONTE ZFE

Particulars of the joint ventures at 30 April 2014 are as follows:—

HUE
Ao vl A T T
JBe A 2 THIH LR 451
Proportion of
nominal value of
ﬁﬂﬂ)ﬁﬁ/ issued share capital
EBRMIERX K P indirectly held by
Form of Place of Ji& oy JE 7] the Company
AR business incorporation/ Class of “E g R = SEB IR
Name of company structure operation share held 2014 2013 Nature of business
MKP-Wui Loong Al LSy Y e 49% 49% HEEME R R 5
System Scaffolds Incorporated Malaysia Ordinary Promoting
Sdn Bhd scaffolding
systems
Waui Foo Engineering R WA RTES e 50% 50% FRAL e TH 42
Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary Provision of
climbing
scaffolding
WLS (Oversea Projects) k{7 HU il 50% 50% [FEIS TS
SR B AR
Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary Mining and
exploration
of natural
resources

i ZF =AM A =+ H > MKP-Wui Loong
System Scaffolds Sdn Bhd & WLS (Oversea

Projects) Limited i A Bl 46 SE75 o

Projects) Limited have not yet commenced business.

At 30 April 2014, MKP-Wui Loong System Scaffolds Sdn Bhd and WLS (Oversea
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19. REE A A Z B ) INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
B A 4 1B DA 25 75 51 B 2 5 78 N RO 22 2 B The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s interests
BEEHEERSINT : in joint ventures which are accounted for using the equity method is set out
below:—
A4 M
Group
L= L
2014 2013
AR THETC
HK$°000 HKS$ 000
% AE Total assets 2 59
L vk Total Liabilities 18) (6,975)
BT Net liabilities 16) (6,916)

LM NG G AR 2 EETFE  Group’s share of net assets of joint ventures - =

Wi 4 Revenue 6,971 =
AL A (R Profit/(loss) for the year 6,900 3,177)
A4 FEAS A [ FE A 5 A T Group’s share of results of joint ventures
2R for the year* - _
& JREAG B8 7 2 Res HE A28 PR A AR 42 [ 8 B o % The share of loss of joint ventures are limited to the investment cost of the Group.
20. EWBEARIMGEATIZ AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
B IH VENTURES
JT A JRE B A A W B BN R 2 BOE £ SR AR All amounts due from associates and joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free
P~ REHE A TR R - and repayable on demand.
21. 8 INVENTORIES
7 45 1
Group
- S 111 E1 3 “E A
2014 2013
F#T T
HK$’000 HK$°000
JERE— A Raw materials — at cost 423 756
SR — AE Finished goods — at cost 351 120

774 876
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22. JRE W Bk N At JE Wit 5k JE TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AL
Group
e Sl l/1: 3 —F—=
2014 2013
T T
HK$’000 HK$°000
JRE SR Trade receivables 59,168 57,072
At FE WS RTE Other receivables - 20,700
59,168 77,772
B RIERR A Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (248) (20,700)
58,920 57,072
HR PR 22 B Al AR b i BRI SR 17.15 & 17.17 1% » According to rules 17.15 and 17.17 of the GEM Listing Rules on the GEM of the
ZE U ) — B B R (R A A [ 4R 961 8% 2 A B Stock Exchange, a disclosure obligation arises where the relevant advance to an
FREAE P 5% o entity exceeds 8% of the Group’s total assets.

Mo —ZFPH =1 H > DN E AL As at 30 April 2013, the following advance to a subcontractor for the completion of
— [ P JB 2 ] S8 U SR A 40 2 43 HI R BB A AR a construction contract for a subsidiary of the Group exceeded 8% of the Group’s

A1 [ 7 T R T (L T 2 AR 1Y 8% (A B K T 2 total assets before the recognition of impairment, the amount was written off as
i FT—PUAE DY H =+ H AR A S BBk R 2 il uncollectible as at 30 April 2014
HRAH)
s —z—=
2014 2013
Tt THsIC A% B8 A Y Ay b
HK$°000 HKS 000 % of Total assets

o 5 R TE AR A A R A T Polysources Worldwide Limited - 20,700 0% (Bft5E) (Note)
Fif sk« 2EE BN R ARE R ENERER T — =4 Note: The entire advance was fully impaired as at 30 April 2013 following the compulsory

PO H =+ H RE0EE - W E iRk —E D4 H winding-up of the subcontractor, and was written off as uncollectible as at 30 April

= F RS AS RE A [ 2 SRR o 2014
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22, JREWC ek B Lt WK I (00

ATE-PUEN A =+ H o Rl g 8w KR

B N TYBUA N T - AN R S M A
FZES - ERATHAR > EEE R e
R s S A B 2 BB GEFe RAIZE M
Hi) BB 2 s A o

VA b 2 A B A S B O R e d—
AT AR A 1) 7% 20 40 7 A 3t < SRR T 7 A o %M
IR AR R ~ B2 St — R Ty U -

SRR A 2 BT

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The above subcontractor and its ultimate beneficial owners were independent
of and not connected with the Company, the Directors, chief executive,
management shareholders or substantial shareholders of the Company, its
subsidiaries or their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules), as at 30 April 2014.

The advance resulted from funds provided to the subcontractor by the Group
in its ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms. It was

unsecured and interest-free, and had normal terms of settlement.

Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the year were as

follows:—

A4

Group
e a1 (43 ZE A
2014 2013
T#T THIT
HK$°000 HK$°000
fLH—H 1 May 20,700 12,457
SRR A Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 248 10,350

ANHEWR ] 2 SR AR Amounts written off as uncollectible (20,700) (2,107)

PWH=+H 30 April 248 20,700

3t 7 A1 T R A R e LAt R o R Dk (L 4 A
A, 45 8 Al 5 Dok (L 2 R o M 3 488 44 248,000 7 T
(= F—=A4F £ 20,700,000 #75) © 1 Il T i (E 2
FEY IR B R BT AR - AR A
TR R AT R i R o

1] 45 42 {1 3 25 5 B4 2 0 B T AR IE A ) < A
FEA K ARG o MEUCIRAR B H At
JEWCHIR AR AT T

Included in the above allowances for impairment of trade and other receivables
of the Group are allowances for individually impaired trade receivables of
HK$248,000 (2013: HK$20,700,000). The individually impaired receivables
relate to customers that were in default and only a portion of the receivables is

expected to be recovered.

The credit terms given to each individual customer were in accordance with the
payment terms stipulated in the relevant tenders or contracts. The aged analysis

of trade and other receivables is as follows:—

it 1123 EF =
2014 2013
T#n T
HK$°000 HK$’000
0—90 H 0 to 90 days 21,288 28,177
91—180 H 91 to 180 days 9,443 3,382
181—365H 181 to 365 days 8,339 4,657
A 1 4R Above 1 year 20,098 41,556
59,168 77,772
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22. JREW R ok B H- At JE W wk TB () TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

s L A A ) s A 6 5 2 e 2 R AR R The aged analysis of the trade and other receivables that are past due but neither

B A REMCRIE 2 BRES AT N R individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:—
AR
Group
it S 1 3 et S
2014 2013
SRV T
HK$°000 HK$°000
EI G Current 21,288 28,177
B DI =18 A Less than 3 months 9,443 3,382
A =8 A £ LA 3 months to 9 months 8,339 4,657
8L H  TLAE A Over 9 months 19,850 20,856
58,920 57,072
JHE i B 3K %920,612,000 # 76 (= & — = 4F ¢ Trade receivables of approximately HK$20,612,000 (2013: HK$22,842,000)
22,842,000 #570) ] —4RATHEITAE 2 — MR 4R AT have been pledged to a banker to secure general banking facilities granted to the
R Z IR (RLKfHEE36) © Group (see note 36).

23. HEW(EM) FEEAH TR AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) CUSTOMERS FOR

B IH CONTRACT WORK
A4
Group
e e LK “F =4
2014 2013
T#T THIT
HKS$°000 HK$°000
R R TE & LA Contracts in progress at the end of the reporting period:
1A B A INEAS Contract costs incurred to date plus attributable profits
Tt A L R e 18 less recognised losses 222,672 295,621
WS B R A B I Progress payments received and receivable (204,420) (234,613)
18,252 61,008
Ve R HT 5 Analysed for reporting purposes as:
JEWCE P & #) TR RIE Amounts due from customers for contract work 24,704 64,297
JEAT %5 5 & 4 LAR O Amounts due to customers for contract work (6,452) (3,289)

18,252 61,008
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24, FEWCLRIE 4

RETENTION MONIES RECEIVABLES

A M
Group
SEemgE F=
2014 2013
Tt THETT
HK$’000 HK$°000
JRE A A4 T 45 Retention monies receivables 6,368 6,717
W R EARE A Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (20) =
6,348 6,717

RERBH IR FE N BT

Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the year were as

follows:—

AL

Group
e S 1142 eSS
2014 2013
T#x T
HK$°000 HK$°000
fLH—H 1 May - 78
SRR Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 20 -

NREMSC ] 2 AR Amounts written off as uncollectible - (78)

PWH="+H 30 April 20 =

JRE T A4 ] 4x £92,178,000 8 T (& — =
2,498,000 # 7T) B ] — SRATHEHAE 25— SR AT il
& AR (R 36) -

25, FMEOH - ki RILL D)
v
FRTRROE ~ i S HA B B R

Retention monies receivables of approximately HK$2,178,000 (2013:
HK$2,498,000) have been pledged to a banker to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (see note 36).

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
CURRENT ASSETS

Details of prepayments, deposits and other current assets are as follows:-

A H Y /A
Group Company
—FmE T = 2wy ZF =

2014 2013 2014 2013
Tt T SRV Tk
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
FEATFHIE Prepayments 964 519 101 171
e Deposits 423 423 - =
Hopth i) 5 Other current assets 4,681 1,496 - =
6,068 2,438 101 171




26. SUTHER R BLE RMEAT
ek

SRAT A B S B B G AR W P 15 2 B I
W H s =8 A 8L T Z S HISRAT A K o SRAT A
BRI T I8 A7 BE AT 0% 2 0.26% Z FIFERTE

HEAERAT A7 3R TE A T 8- 47 Z T2k A (R 82 7
R Z SPATEE - AEMMBITHEEEGH
B 2 8 A DR A8 1 SR AT HE AT 680,000 #E T (—
Fr—=AF 1 680,000 HI0) Z A7 K (FLRHEE36) o

27. BEAH sk B Bl JE F sk IR
HE o 0 3 A S o 5 IR € 4 B R
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BANK BALANCES AND CASH/PLEDGED BANK
DEPOSIT

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short term bank
deposit with an original maturity of three months or less. The bank balances

carry interest at rates ranging from 0% to 0.26% for both years.

Pledged bank deposit represents deposit pledged for banking facilities granted
to the Group. Deposit amounting to HK$680,000 (2013: HK$680,000) has been
pledged to a bank for surety bond issued by the bank in respect of a construction

contract (see note 36).

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of HK$10,412,000

10,412,000 % st ( — & — = 4F : 10,216,000 # (2013: HK$10,216,000) with an aged analysis as follows:—
Jo) o HARES AT
AR M
Group
. e
2014 2013
Tt THETT
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
0—90H 0—90 days 6,311 6,793
91—180 H 91 — 180 days 3,041 1,088
181—365 H 181 — 365 days 1,010 2,264
A 1 4R Above 1 year 50 71
JOEE A} B R A Total trade payables 10,412 10,216
EC At A 20 R RES 28 T > SEB T Details of other payables and accruals are as follows:—
7 4 1 y: /A |
Group Company
e S l1'f20 —F =5 e Sl 122 —E =
2014 2013 2014 2013
Tt TH#IT T#x TH#IT
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
HoAth EAT R IE Other payables 321 649 6 126
JEwt# T Accruals 4,321 4,092 447 520

4,642 4,741 453 646
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28. Hoft Bk — A

OTHER LOANS - UNSECURED

AL Y. N/
Group Company
SECME CF oS SEoWE CF g
2014 2013 2014 2013
T#x T T#x T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
oA B — SR Other loans — unsecured 9,689 5,341 - -

S R IR~ HAFE IR 6% wH R MR ZE SR AR

.

7= o

29. LA R YE

The amounts are unsecured, interest bearing at 6% per annum and repayable on

demand.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

AL Group
s ARHLAI A 5k s AL 494wk BLE
Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
&4 e LS e e LK TR
2014 2013 2014 2013
T#x T T#T THIT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
—4ER Within one year 648 703 577 610
BB RFN In the second to fifth
(B E E W) year inclusive 445 1,093 444 1,021
1,093 1,796
W AR RS Less: future finance charges (72) (165)
FREAYE 2 Bl(H Present value of lease
obligations 1,021 1,631 1,021 1,631
W R AR E Less: Amount due within
A2 A Gk i one year shown under
BE MBI TIImR) current liabilities (577) (610)
AR BRI 2 FE Amount due after one year 444 1,021

7R AR [H D RS AR A0 B A TVOE - P E A
WA MA o HE ZF— MW H =1+ H L4
B > OF- 35 B A B AR I R A 2.5 )8 £3.25
JE o F 2T A B IR E o BT LA P LA E
B S B E > LN St s AR 4 9 SRRT S %
B

The Group leases certain of its motor vehicles under finance leases. The
average lease term is four years. For the year ended 30 April 2014, the average
effective borrowing rate ranged from 2.5% to 3.25% per annum. The interest
rate is fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and

no arrangement has been entered into for contingent rental payments.
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29. BREMAIEYE @

AR T 2 Rl AR A 7R A DA e RN A T o
J7 A

R A 2 S AR YE 2 PE (TR
PEAG R A B 6 L B 2 i A SR 2 R T 35
B BUEEE ) B R AR I (ELAR A -

30. SRATERRE L
A
SRATEE R S AT A e R A o

A 4 ] T A SRAT BT B S R R T B R SR
FTEL A DA ST — 1 H A s aRAT IR 2E R B
1.5 2 A s S BB e 125 B (R — =
A 0 IR SR8 ] A s SRAT IR SR B0 1.5 B
EREHEAZN1.25H) o

BEHGDRAE M 2 ST RSB S N TE (T

R A R A B 4 Ui B F  o 0oR 2 E R i 8
AL BUEME ) BLARE{E AR o

HUT R I S 2 WE R TR BRI B RE 36 -

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s charge

over the leased assets.

The directors consider the fair values of the Group’s finance lease obligations,
determined based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted using the prevailing market rate at the end of the reporting period

approximate the corresponding carrying amounts.

BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS

Group

Bank loans and overdrafts are secured and are repayable on demand.

All the Group’s bank loans and overdrafts carry interest at 1-month Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (the “HIBOR”) plus 1.5% per annum to Hong Kong
Dollar Prime Rate (the “Prime Rate”) plus 1.25% per annum (2013: 1-month
HIBOR plus 1.5% per annum to Prime Rate plus 1.25% per annum).

The directors consider the fair values of the Group’s bank loans and overdrafts,
determined based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted using the prevailing market rate at the end of the reporting period,

approximate the carrying amounts.

Details of the securities for the bank loans and overdrafts are set out in

note 36.
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2% ot P JE ﬁ]ﬁg/( ) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
e Sl 12 ZE A
2014 2013
T#x T
HK$°000 HK$°000
R A T Deferred tax assets 8,018 =
MRS RLIE & if Deferred tax liabilities (273) (2,111)
7,745 @,111)
T 51 5 7 AR 1 S A B R A A P TR R Movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised by the Group during
FORMERBIHE (AR DUSA B E) - the current and prior years are as follows:—
A4 Group
2 I T
Accelerated
BLIE s 1E tax Bt
Tax losses depreciation Total
T THTT THIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
ﬁ’;\*”**ﬁj‘iﬂéﬂ At 1 May 2012 - (1,783) (1,783)
RE (FIER)) (B 7) (Charge) to profit or loss (note 7) = (328) (328)
MEFE-=FNA =1 A K At 30 April 2013
*i**EEiH H and 1 May 2013 - (2,111) @2,111)
FtA/ (k%) s (FE7) Credit/(charge) to profit or loss (note 7) 10,401 (545) 9,856
HF—ENA=1+H At 30 April 2014 10,401 (2,656) 7,745
RS AR R 2 IR B T B 2 R EIE AR - Details of unrecognised deferred tax assets at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:—
e S I1E2 —EF =
2014 2013
T#x T
HK$’000 HK$°000
W~ B Bk Property, plant and equipment (49) (313)
AT TE G 15 Unabsorbed tax losses 7,528 4,936
7,479 4,623

H A B AR i A AR VR S Y > SRS AR R N The deferred tax assets have not been recognised in the consolidated financial
M7 2R i R A0 i B TEUE E o o T 18 R 4T PR A 4% statements due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses
i o may be carried forward indefinitely.
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32. AR SHARE CAPITAL
e U1 e 1K< 3 — = xR =
2014 2014 2013 2013
Jit RN i THsoo
No of shares HK$°000 No of shares HK$’000

Ve A Authorised

BRI 0.01 #5762 W4l Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

AU A =-+H At 30 April 10,000,000,000 100,000 10,000,000,000 100,000

CEAT AR A Issued & fully paid

WHHA—H At 1 May 1,119,762,693 11,198  1,119,762,693 11,198

MR PR R A RE T 3554 T A Issue of shares under

(BREE (1)) Share Option Scheme
(note (i) 40,600,000 406 - -

W 65 e A (BfFGE (ii)) Placing of shares (note (ii)) 223,950,000 2,239 - -

A =1H As at 30 April 1,384,312,693 13,843 1,119,762,693 11,198

MiGE : Notes:

(i) A Z— A H =+ B IE4EE > 40,600,000 (i) For the year ended 30 April 2014, 40,600,000 share options were exercised at the price
1y TR HEAEA T » RRE A 20.061 7T - B of HK$0.061 per share, resulting in the issue of 40,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
LEHE1740,600,000 845 L THI {EL0.01 #E TE 2 A A W each in the Company.

(i) MREF—NUE—ATH > AL F EEE QT (i)  On 10 January 2014, the Company entered into a placing agreement with a placing

7 i B Bk o BRI AR R B AR IR R
i 7 K v 97 088 e 65 AR DA A B IS S B4 0.108
W0 Z B A% - T i £ 223,950,000 [ A8 2 &)
2 B (T il B A 1) T A D X & 2 7K e
YNNIV WNE 852 SoEnt X PN L A
J5 e FEBE R F—NE— A A JUH SERL - i
223,950,000 & Fict B e A5 AR SR i 65 B el e gt AT
FARDINANA ZIKELN o

agent, pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to place through the placing

agent, on a best endeavours basis, up to 223,950,000 ordinary shares of the Company

(the “Placing Shares”) to not less than six placees who and whose ultimate beneficial

owners were independent third parties at a price of HK$0.108 per Placing Share. The

placing was completed on 29 January 2014 and 223,950,000 Placing Shares were issued

to not less than six placees in accordance with the terms of the placing agreement.
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33. fikifh RESERVES
AR
Company
AN vl R A NG
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Ji A ok
Bt i 10 Share R BCHER ik fhi L4y i
Share option Warrant Accumulated ki
premium reserve reserve losses Total
TBT Tk TiET TiET T
HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$°000 HK$’000
-t At 1 May 2012
HH—H 119,374 7,667 = (27,716) 99,325
A A Profit and total comprehensive income
MRTRA for the year = - - 9,640 9.640
Bl R e Grant of share options = 476 - - 476
AR N B R R A Share options lapsed
during the year - (969) - 969 =
BT IR Issue of warrants = = 200 = 200
RoF—=4E At 30 April 2013
MA=+Hk% and 1 May 2013
SR 2
HH—H 119,374 7,174 200 (17,107) 109,641
AR Loss and total comprehensive loss
MA2TWER for the year = - - (22,550) (22,550)
Jhefn it Placing of shares 21,947 - - - 21,947
il Exercise of share options 2,072 = = = 2,072
AF: TN TR 28 Share options lapsed
during the year - (5,530) - 5,530 =
/A S!S
MWA=+H At 30 April 2014 143,393 1,644 200 (34,127) 111,110




34. W st 3

BRFEIR ZFE A —H A I H R
HERT B A AR AT T ——F N =1 H
AT 2 B SR A R B 58 ) IS S 2 348 S T Rl 58
Kl o BUIEIRMERT B IL4% > AN FRTE R
AMEASZ AT A M PR P L B T ) 2 e et
PR 2 W R AL LA L AT B R80T

RBAR AR ZF——F/NA =T H RN
JRERERT S (ToT# ) Z ek > AN FER G ([#
S 1) n] 2 RERY 1 B AR =) S AT o] B A
2 AR B (BLIE AR/ ) i ELAT fo] B g 2 /I 3
AT~ FEAT B M8 S I AT o = A 4 AT A
BT ZATAAT A B ) B AN IR - DAGRIE AR 2 ]
ety » FZEH M BB #E S - 5 G B R
W o AR T 1) B A ) A o] 25 Al Jo e A - 42
H I 1 AR AT il 2 T A AR A AT (8 1T 7 DA 34T
Z A AR > ERT R MR R o A
AR NI AT IRAS 30% ©

PRAT (77 - A ) 308 ] i AR 42 N B2 Bt T
P2 2 IR (BLHE B AT S i AR AT (6 S A
1M B AT MG T 8T 2 I 2 A E » A
AN T BT IRAS R 1% » BRI () T JBR
FFEEILR 5 S (b) BEACHEESZ Hh R A Be it b
B2 W IREHE o 2 A s T I MO IR 28 A S il At
fE 1T
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 25 November 2001 was
terminated by a written resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 August 2011. Upon
termination of this share option scheme, no further share options under this
scheme could be granted, but the provisions of this share option scheme will
remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the

exercise of those share options granted prior to its termination.

Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 30
August 2011 (the “Option Scheme”), for the primary purpose of providing
incentive to directors, eligible employees and consultants, the board of directors
of the Company (the “Board”) may, at its absolute discretion, offer full-time
employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or any consultants or advisors of any member of the Group, to take
up options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The maximum aggregate
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not, subject to the conditions set out in the
Option Scheme, exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from

time to time.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued on the exercise of
options granted and to be granted (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to a grantee in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total
issued share capital of the Company in issue, unless (a) a shareholder circular
is dispatched to the shareholders; and (b) the shareholders approve the grant of
the options in excess of the limit referred to herein. A nominal consideration of

HKS$1 is payable on acceptance of each grant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The subscription price was determined by the Board, but may not be less than
the highest of (a) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the GEM as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of the
options or, where certain conditions set out in the Option Scheme apply, on the
date of the Board proposing such grant; (b) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares on the GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
offer of the options or, where certain conditions set out in the Option Scheme
apply, the average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares on the GEM as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the Board proposing such grant; and (c) the

nominal value of the shares.

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with the terms
of the Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified by the Board
to each grantee that the period within which the option may be exercised shall
not be more than 10 years from the date on which the offer of the grant of the
options is made in accordance with the terms of the Option Scheme. There is no
general requirement on the minimum period for which an option must be held

before an option can be exercised under the terms of the Option Scheme.

Details of movements in the Company’s share options held by employees

(including directors) are as follows:—

REF—= REZ Wi
LA—H BHRHE/  MA=TH
frEs W BRI R R B AT LIPS it BREYHA
(BfEEERH) fifife Number of Granted Exercised Lapsed  Resignation/ Number of
“E-mE S REAM Exercisable period Exercise  share options during during during  appointment  share options
2014 Date granted (both dates inclusive) price at 1.5.2013 the year the year the year of director  at 30.4.2014
T
HKS
L SEERLE ZERNENATHAR 06 21,500,000 - - (21,500,000) - =
Directors +HAH ZF—EN A A
8 October 2007 15 April 2008 to
14 April 2014
ZEE G ZEZNEF-HAHE 0217 5,700,000 = - — (1,400,000 4300000
HAZH “Z—-MEt—AAR
2 May 2008 9 November 2008 to

8 November 2014
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34. WEEREGTE (@) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
REZ—= e 3
fA—H BERIE/  WAZTH
frt TR HESH EREH ERATHE ERRR FIE WREHA
(B EERH) fifife Number of Granted Exercised Lapsed  Resignation/ Number of
ZE-mE S REAM Exercisable period Exercise  share options during during during  appointment  share options
2014 Date granted (both dates inclusive) price at 1.5.2013 the year the year the year of director  at 30.4.2014
BT
HKS
e o <3 “Z-FETZANRE 0.128 - - - ~ 9,000,000 9,000,000
+—ANH “F-NEH LR
8 November 2010 8 December 2010 to
7 December 2016
“F-CF ZF-CHEt-HZtEHE 0.061 36,300,000 — (34300,000) = = 2,000,000
+=ANH “E-WEF—HZF+ZH
9 November 2012 23 November 2012 to
22 November 2014
63,500,000 - (34300,000)  (21,500,000) 7,600,000 15,300,000
{351 “EFLE ZEZNFUATHAE 0.6 6,080,000 - - (6,080,000) - -
Employees +AAH ZF N A+ H
8 October 2007 15 April 2008 to
14 April 2014
“E-%h “F-FET-AARE 0.128 15,800,000 = = — (9,000,000 6,800,000
+—ANAH B SN i Ef o
8 November 2010 8 November 2010 to
7 December 2016
i S “F-CH-AZt=HE 0.061 800,000 - (800,000 - - -
+—H1H “F-WEt-A2tH
9 November 2012 23 November 2012 to
22 November 2014
22,680,000 - (800,000) (6,080,000) (9,000,000) 6,800,000
#HZ “F-CF i S e £y RN 0.061 5,500,000 - (5,500,000) = = =
LI +—ANH e S 125 Sl |
Directors’ 9 November 2012 23 November 2012 to
Associates 22 November 2014
ZEENERAZH ZEFNEF-ANLAE 0217 = = = = 1,400,000 1,400,000
“Z-WEt—HAR
2 May 2008 9 November 2008 to
8 November 2014

5,500,000 = (5,500,000) = 1,400,000 1,400,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

REZ—=4 REZ WA
LA—H BHRHE/  MAZETH
(iid W BRI R P B AT LIPS it BREYA
(fEEERA) fifife Number of Granted Exercised Lapsed  Resignation/  Number of
ZE-mE S REAM Exercisable period Exercise  share options during during during  appointment  share options
2014 Date granted (both dates inclusive) price at 1.5.2013 the year the year the year of director  at 30.4.2014
T
HKS
il “F-CF “F-CEF-HTERE 0.061 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
Consultant +—ANH “E-NEF—HZFZH
9 November 2012 23 November 2012 to
22 November 2014
2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
Eit
Total 93,680,000 - (40,600,000)  (27,580,000) - 25,500,000
TREEA T (1 BB
Number of share options exercisable at the end of the year 25,500,000
IR
Weighted Average Exercise Price 0.2405 - 0.061 0.600 - 0.1374
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The fair values of services received in return for share options granted is

measured by reference to the fair value of share options granted. The estimate

of the fair value of the share options granted is measured based on the Binomial

KA ABIEW T ¢ model. The inputs into the model were as follows:—
“Fck
JeliEp-

“RE\E “RRNR “EEIE "Bk Bk "Rk #HYH "Rk "Rk
BUEA-EF  BRED-ER  BREA-EF  BRER-ER  BUMEC-BR  RREA-EF  opin203B  BREC-EN  BRiED-RA
Option 20084 Option 2008B Option 2009A Option 20118 Option 2011C Option 2013A - Directors’ Option 2013C Option 2013D
- Director - Employee - Director - Employee - Employee - Director associate - Consultant - Employee
B Dataf gt SAREE CRBHE BB CB%F CB%F R0 Rk SRk SRk
TAAR TAAR fAZA T=HAH T—AAR AR T=AH T-ANA =R
§ October 2007 8 October 2007 IMay2008 8 November2010 8 November2010 9 November2012 9 November2012 9 November2012 9 November 2012
A Fairvalue 020147 0161930 006163670 0.0605 870 0058270 00107H 00107H 00108370 0010180
HKS02114 HKS0.1619 HKS0.0616 HKS0.0605 HRS0.0582 HKS0.0107 HKS00107 HKS00108 HKS00101
TERHEE Option ffe 65 654 654 616 614 1 2 2 y
(B (in years) 6.5 years 0.5 years 0.5 years 0.1 years 0.1 years Dyears Dyears D years Dyears
Rt AN Grant dateshare price 0607 0.607C 0217870 012167 01207 0.061 7t 0.061 70 00610 006170
HKS0.60 HKS0.60 HKS0.217 HRS0.12 HKS0.12 HKS0.061 HKS0.061 HRS0.061 HRS0.061
il Exercise price 0607 0.6067C 0217870 01283870 0.8 0.061 7 0.061 70 006110 006170
HKS0.60 HKS0.60 HKS0.217 HKS0.128 HKS0.128 HKS0.061 HKS0.061 HKS0.061 HRS0.061
i Expected volaiy 2% 52% % 82% 82% 66% 66% 6% 6%
kE% Dividend yield 132% 132% 0% 0% 0% 0% % % 0%
FEERRT Anml sk freeinerest 4196% 4196% 2467% 1.276% 1.276% 0.188% 0.188% 0.188% 0.188%
[Eags Stafftumover rate 20 40.68% 18% 115% 115% 33% 33% % 1%

R DA 7 B 0 22 Bk > i =%
—PFENA = R FE AN A =4 H R
SR B A B2 2 T B ] A A S S L AT ek 49
H IS SO i -

A S A A TR AR s )45 M ) AR e B S
HEAE B R TT (B —=4F 476,000 #ETT) ©

In accordance with the terms of share-based arrangement, options issued prior
to or during the financial years ended 30 April 2014 and 30 April 2013 are fully

vested before the date of exercisable period.

During the year, the Group recognised expenses totalling HK$ Nil (2013:

HK$476,000) in relation to share options granted by the Company.
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34. BEBERESHH (w0

AZF-UAEMA =+ R > REEREI
FBOHE e 1 B A AT (AR 0 B v e B 1 A
KRR E HE TR 1.84% (2% —=
8.37%) e

R AR > A AARIER A 25,500,000 47 14
AT 1) W FREHE o Hic A2 ) S IRR 1 PR RE A
B T 01 0¥ R AT 0 S I A SRR A B AT
25,500,000 f A= 2 ) 38 4 I K &AM AR 255,000
W0 > LA A R0y 1615 3,248,000 W5 0 (R 714%
TRI3D) -

35. JE Ll aB e hE e

A ZE =N = NH > R ) B 4 5
i8¢ s R W N A T ST T R I I T
RS i e NEID-R a2 finrdiva e
1718 0.001 ¥ JCEEIE 100,000,000 173 5B AEAHERE o Y
HoE - FhA -+ EHREE T HE
A+t H k=110 H 8 - 058 BrEas bt
R R 4 R R P R R R T HR A T (4 0.075 7%
JC AR — BB R HE R Ay
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TR AR » A ORI T 5 & A AR
PR — A SRAT R 2 R R

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

At 30 April 2014, the number of shares in respect of which options had been
granted and remained outstanding under the scheme was 1.84% (2013: 8.37%)

of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 25,500,000 share options
outstanding under the Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 25,500,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$255,000 and share premium of HK$3,248,000

(before issue expense).

UNLISTED WARRANTS

On 28 August 2012, the company entered into two warrant subscription
agreements with two warrant subscribers respectively. Each of the respective
warrant subscribers agreed to subscribe for 100,000,000 warrants at the issue
price of HK$0.001 per warrant. Each of the warrants carries the right to
subscribe for one Warrant Share at the initial exercise price of HK$0.075 per
warrant share during a period of 30 months commencing from 27 September
2012 until 27 February 2015.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has pledged the following assets

as securities against general banking facilities granted to the Group:—

e S l11E: 3 =
2014 2013
Tt THTT
HK$°000 HK$°000
Eid<LyES Investment properties 36,370 35,750
FH A 4 b Je Leasehold land and buildings 7,588 7,817
AT Bank deposit 680 680
MR Trade receivables 20,612 22,842
JRE NS [ 4 3K T Retention receivables 2,178 2,498
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37. AR HfE

A TR —PUAE H =+ H > AN B kR RS
ZE%A%E%ﬁéimﬁ TAE i 647,000 ¥ T
TE—ZAE 1 647,000 7T) 2 S ERTE o

AT —PUENH =1+ H » AN RA SR A S
#£102,467,000 #5 70 ( & — =4 : 88,100,000 5
TG o Vb B ) HEE T B R A RIS RS AR o

ATE-PEN A =+ H > ZRARRMLTEEST
o B R A LA AR BB R A AT AT
HERYE -

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 30 April 2014, the Group provided counter indemnities amounting to
HK$647,000 (2013: HK$647,000) to a bank for surety bonds issued by the

banks in respect of a construction contract.

At 30 April 2014, the Company had contingent liabilities amounting to
HK$102,467,000 (2013: HK$88,100,000) in respect of financial support

provided to certain of its subsidiaries.

At 30 April 2014, several litigations were in progress. In the opinion of
the directors, they do not give rise to any material effect or impact on the

consolidated financial statements.
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KA 5130 185 50 300 £ 2 R Al e AR AL Bk
BRI

COMMITMENTS

(i)  Operating lease commitments and arrangements
The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which

fall due as follows:

y: = 30|
Group
2wy ZF =
2014 2013
T#x T
HK$’000 HK$°000
—4EN Within one year 510 467
SRR AR (R B WA In the second to fifth years inclusive 250 261
760 728

B REL A SR A8 2 T T R 2 7L
G - AU FEITERRIT © HAFH
TR AR 52 -

FIEMER RN

TRERE IR - ACSE B BELAR S LR 51 R AR
EAL EFIHRT LA 4

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for certain of its
factory and warehouse quarters. Leases are negotiated for an average

term of two years and rentals are fixed for an average of two years.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants

for the following future minimum lease payments:

AL
Group
—E U —EFz =
2014 2013
T#n T
HK$’000 HK$°000
—4ER Within one year 1,080 586
B FREAE (B E R In the second and fifth years inclusive 555 =
1,635 586

TH &) RS wf B A <6 DA W AR 4F A ] 7 o

Leases are negotiated and rental are fixed for a term of two years.
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39. Bk A E

o EEEEL ] —A# AEED AR
) I H A v BHE A ) A G s B L2 AR
St dl o ARG BB LE L AEH L E
FAALRET B o PRI BT SR H > A M R
B4 AR5 5 ) e A v 40 P R (R B i
AZS%¥ a8 H E G Ak LA 1,250
JGRERR  BEANZ ARG B R o

A2 T A5 A Wi 2 e B 2 S8R 1,115,000 75 70
(T —=4F 11,430,000 9 TC) 45 A< 22 5] 7] 5 A
ST itk o

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has arranged for all qualifying
employees of the Company and its Hong Kong subsidiaries to join the
MPF Scheme. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, both the Group and
the employees make monthly contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of
the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation, subject to a cap of HK$1,250 per month and thereafter contributions

are voluntary.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
of HK$1,115,000 (2013: HKS$1,430,000) represents contributions payable to
the MPF Scheme by the Group.
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40. ALY RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Q) AN G E BB RIS AT AL (i)  During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with

2 related parties:—

L

Group
.
2014 2013
T#T THIT
HK$’000 HKS$’000

AE A Joint ventures

FE A Interest income 8 10

B 2 o) Rl N 2 5 BRI B A B B Details of the balances with the Group’s related parties are set out in the

IR P& BT o consolidated statement of financial position and respective notes.
() FEEIAEME (ii) Compensation of key management personnel
AR N - AT 2 T e HL At T A L il B 2 T The remuneration of executive directors and other members of key
EIH management during the year was as follows:—
A4
Group
R4 CE A
2014 2013
TFitoc U
HK$°000 HK$°000
1 HA A A Short-term benefits 7,289 6,641
ARARAER Post-employment benefits 90 90
JEASGER 2 IRy AF 2 3K H Equity-settled share-based payments - 323
7,379 7,054
BATHES (R A FEEMAS) Z B4 7 b 35 The remuneration of executive directors, who are also members of key
72 B & ok = A BILRE AR 2 TRAR N SR I e T 5 management, is determined by the Remuneration Committee or senior
PARMEGE o management having regard to the performance of individuals and market

trends.
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B A Tl A [ 2 A SR A 2 (R I o A o A A5 ik
HHAR o AR [ A A TEE RIS AR R 2 Tl
[l % - DABE (R AT 5t /N W ic [l < BB AR /2 400 st
(B8 - HUkin S > HHER AL 2 F
JEBR B K MR A o

SRATA k2 M5 BB A 8 A PR - R 8
SRAT S AR ] B 2 B -

ZT—NEFHR  Annual Report 2014

Aok B YU 5 0 B i

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s major financial instruments include amounts due from associates,
joint ventures and customers for contract work, trade and other receivables,
retention monies receivables, deposits, bank balances and cash, other loans,
amounts due to customers for contract work, trade and other payables, retention
monies payables, obligation under finance lease and bank loans and overdrafts.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely

and effective manner.
Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the counterparts’
failure to perform their obligations as at 30 April 2014 in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets is the carrying amounts of those assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group is exposed to
concentration of credit risk as the carrying amounts of the receivables are
arising from a limited number of customers. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group has a certain level of concentration of credit risk as 22% (2013: 22%)
and 34% (2013: 35%) of the total trade receivables, arising from the Group’s
largest customer and the two largest customers, respectively. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has policies in place for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, management considers that the

Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the counterparties are banks

and creditworthy financial institutions.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through the changes in
interest rates related mainly to the Group’s variable-rates bank loans and bank
deposits and balances. The Group does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
The management of the Group would monitor and manage its exposure to

fluctuation in interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined assuming that a change
in interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rates for financial instruments in existence
at that date. A 1% increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s

assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended 30 April 2014 would have
increased/decreased by HK$504,000 (2013: HK$418,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate bank

loans.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has not changed significantly from the

prior year.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that a group entity will encounter difficulty in raising
funds to meet commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity
risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its

fair value.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash. The
Group monitors and maintains a level of bank balances deemed adequate to

finance the Group’s operations.

The Group employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk
by forecasting the amount of cash required and monitoring the working
capital of the Group to ensure that all liabilities due and known funding
requirements could be met. In addition, banking facilities have been put
in place for contingency purposes. As at 30 April 2014, the Group’s total
available banking facilities were HK$72,409,000 (2013: HK$60,382,000), of
which HK$52,977,000 (2013: HK$49,205,000) were utilised at the end of the
reporting period.

The maturity profile of the Group’s and Company’s financial liabilities as at the

end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is

as follows:
AR H Group
e o i3
2014
T AN ZMAE 4% —ERRE
On Less than 3 months to 1toS fat
demand 3 months one year years Total
T BRI Tl Tt T
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000
AR — SEHEH Other loans — unsecured 9,689 = = = 9,689
TR 5 £ %) L2 3R0E Amounts due to customers

for contract work - 6,452 - - 6,452
JRERT BN e HM AT 3K0E Trade and other payables = 15,054 - - 15,054
JREASH £ 1 4 3RO Retention monies payables - - 1,779 - 1,779
RlE AR Obligations under finance leases = 176 472 445 1,093
SRAT R (HTaE (i) Bank loans (Note (i) 41,205 = = = 41,205
SRITIE X Bank overdrafts 11,772 = = = 11,772

62,666 21,682 2,251 445 87,044
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

AL Group
—E A
2013
F4sF ZEWAN ZMAE—% —HRhE
On Less than 3 months to 1to5 fat
demand 3 months one year years Total
T T T#T T T#x
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
LA B — S LA Other loans — unsecured 5,341 = = = 5,341
REAT 2 5 A #) TAREZIA Amounts due to customers
for contract work - 3,289 - - 3,289
JEAT IR L AMERT IR Trade and other payables = 14,957 = = 14,957
A AT A% ] 63 3K Retention monies payables = = 3,251 — 3,251
R 47 Obligations under finance leases - 176 527 1,093 1,796
SRATER (M3E i) Bank loans (Note (i)) 35,237 = = = 35,237
WATIEL Bank overdrafts 13,968 - - - 13,968
54,546 18,422 3,778 1,093 77,839
AT Company
e S 11 43
2014
B4t =AM
On Less than it
demand 3 months Total
Ti#T Tt T#T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
JHRE A B R LA B £ 3k 1 Trade and other payables - 453 453
JREARE B JB 2 ) I Amounts due to subsidiaries 2,442 - 2,442
2,442 453 2,895
e SaeXid
2013
GIER) =ZA N
On Less than L
demand 3 months Total
Tt R T#T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
JARE A R i A R A 3 1 Trade and other payables - 646 646
JEEAST B e 2 ) i IE Amounts due to subsidiaries 2,442 2,442
2,442 646 3,088




41. A% )R B B ()

TRENE 4 B ()

it

()  BERERESRERGCZ AT ERE AR
SN 44 B 50 TRIA | Z B BE o A = —
FMA=ZTHE-ZFE—=4FNHA=1H > 5%
SRAT B AR Bl BLAS 4 48 %E 43 5l £ 41,205,000 #5
JG K% 35,237,000 #5 I o % & B 4% 48 [ 1 B HS SR
U o BN AS TR SRAT A AT HL TR B R AR
N I RE o SRR AR SRAT B O AR R
A T o e P T E 2R K H W ER o R R —
A =4 H > B G KA EBLE R AR A
44,952,000% JC ( — & — = 4 : 36,828,000 5
Jo) °©

B Il B

A1 T i 2 i < L ) R A1 I BEE % 5
T3 A JEL gz o

AREEHR 32 2 SN E B A 58 5 > BILAIE
SERSHIB < il B I BB o AR
B ET WM - T R AR CaishE
EIHY) o AR 2 ] R A T R — B RS
Hy LA % By o 2 8 5 A AR 0 R
PR R 36 otz BOR R o DRI > SRR S ATl
REF -

7 B2 8 [R] 1 REE 7 300 45 460 7 32 N R e T 23R 0 8 J
W o ARSE ) 2 AR W 25 R IR > (ETE AL s 1R
RIS EBR o 87 Wi i 2 45 218 (H £ 42,000
JCIM 4R 2 45 FEE(E £ 17,160,000 # T

VAT 8083 20 8 2 A 452 [ i T 7. 19 41 BEE 22 4
B ARELT > (BRI R R S HE BE A 58 /4 52
B > A a% B R BLA AT A M PR 32 2 5h
ME R S o 7% i phy 8 = 224 BN B e 4 1 B
5 o f ) AP RERE S EF8 R 58 5% > 2R84 HLE
6 HR % AT e A ME 52 55 ) 2 FTA
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Note:

(i) Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “on demand”
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 30 April 2014 and 30 April 2013,
the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$41,205,000 and HK$35,237,000, respectively. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors do not believe that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such bank loans will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. As at 30 April 2014, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows will amount to HK$44,952,000 (2013: HK$36,828,000).

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will

fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through transactions
that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily the Macau Pataca, the United States dollar and the Chinese Renminbi
(through the foreign currency forward contract). The Group mitigates this
risk by conducting transactions in the same currency, whenever possible.
The directors consider there is no material exposure to the Macau Pataca and
the United States dollar as at the end of the reporting period. Accordingly,

sensitivity analysis have not been presented.

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in the Chinese Renminbi exchange rate
via the foreign currency forward contract. The Group’s potential gains are
capped, whilst potential losses are unlimited. The remaining notional value
exposed to gains is HK$42,000 and the notional value exposed to losses is
HK$17,160,000.

The sensitivity analysis below has been performed on the foreign currency
forward contract entered into by the Group assuming that a change in foreign
exchange rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to foreign exchange rate for the derivative contract
in existence at that date. A 5% increase or decrease in foreign exchange rate
is used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible

change in foreign exchange rates.
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41. A% )R B B ()
A SR ()

i NRMEIESC Ea T ai 5% » H A HAt
RS NIAEHEE - F—U4EN
H = B kAR B s 180K 43 R e Y
32,000 #5 76 X FHE TG

A2

T —4E R B 2 4 Rl 7 % B R 4 F AR R
BB PR AR ©

R A SEL R N - 2 A B 2 TR B O R B T
PR T 2 2 AR T A 0 5 B 78 7 > AT 40 i 7
ZERR L T

PAAT

A ) 5 A AE B B R R A A T A
RERRES » AERF IR EA R > DSR2
5% 8 AR e J R [ i

AR B R AR R > g AR R R R A
B A B 1 Jm B A R AR S T R R
Ty R B B AR IR A I T R A B
SRR, ~ 1] R R (] A BB AT R o AR SR
P AN SZ AT AT A1 A B FF) A B2 TR » 0
"R -NENA=ETARSE-=ZFINA =
HRAFRE > I ok AR~ BURERRF -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

If the Chinese Renminbi exchange rate had been 5% higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended 30 April
2014 would have increased/decreased by approximately HK$32,000 and Nil

respectively.

Estimation of fair values

The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less

than one year are assumed to approximate their fair values.

The fair value of balances with related parties has not been determined as
the timing of the expected cash flows of these balances cannot be reasonably

determined because of the relationship.

Management of capital

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital

ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 30 April 2014 and 2013.
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41. A% )R B B ()
BAAE B ()
AEEMF EE AR (A ERD AL

A) R o KA AL AT R R B 0 S I il
EHAVRSE - AR EEARLERNT ¢

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Management of capital (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided
by the total capital. Total debt includes interest-bearing borrowings and
obligations under finance leases. The gearing ratios as at the end of the

reporting period were as follows:—

AR
Group
SEeWE %=

2014 2013
T#x T
HK$°000 HK$°000
Rt BV SR AT 15 1 S0 2 Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts 52,977 49,205
Rl FH 4 AR A Obligations under finance leases 1,021 1,631
Ho A £l B Other loans 9,689 5,341
AR Total debts 63,687 56,177
HEZR (i) Total capital (i) 99,623 134,234
HEAMEILER Gearing ratio 64% 42%

() RS ER AL ITA AR KA > B AL
ARSI A o

42. TR H 19 R A 28 B 7 vk B
B e N 2 S

U EH A € CE M T IR E —F 4
VU = kAR e A A 2k LA A TSI e 4
B AERT - B R ek - —

(i) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group, attributable to equity holders of
the Company.

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new standards and
interpretation which are not yet effective for the year ended 30 April 2014 and
which have not been early adopted by the Group:—
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HEHI ()

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

TATT 51 H Sk 2 A% A i 2 45 B o4 00 i 2 3

Effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after

B s A HE R E AT A
Amendments to HKFRSs

T s B HE R B AT A
Amendments to HKFRSs

T s B TR IV B O 55 e s
FATS R HE ISR 7 SR IERT AR
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and

HKFRS 7

BV AR A HE R 1055 - B
AT s HE U5 12 9% 1o i
GRS 27 SR T A

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

AU EHUEREE 11 S8BT A&

Amendments to HKAS 11

s G EREE 1695 LA i G5t
HEFI 2 38 BEE T AR

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

CRFAER TR AR RSO H
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010 — 2012

Cycle
“E R TSR ORI E
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011 —2013
Cycle
7 VS S 9 15 2E F 5 858 2 B R H 0 B

B
Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 and

transition disclosures

BEAR

Investment entities

wREABEREZ Y
Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint
operations

I RS 2 2 TR

Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation

—Z—ELA—H
1 July 2014

ZE—EELH—H
1 July 2014

AL I — TR A 0 A v B IR RIS 9 SR
RIE I B B M E -

Available for application — the mandatary effective date
will be determined when the outstanding phases or
HKEFRS 9 are finalised.

—“F—NE-H—H
1 January 2014

A i
1 January 2016

—FZ—NF—H—H

1 January 2016
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Ii H AR A ) 51 B B S Ol IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
R ) HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

TATT 51 H Sk 2 A% A i 2 45 B o4 00 i 2 3

Effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after

A g FHERS 19 5HERT A TR - 8 B AR SE—UEEA—H
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions 1 July 2014
A At E RS 32 BEERT A SR K B RS A —AE—A—
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and financial 1 January 2014
liabilities
A EEHERSE 36 BHERT A A G 2 T ] < A R R E—A—
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures for non- 1 January 2014
financial assets
A E eI 30 SR A i TR B R T E sk 2 B4 “F-NE-H—H
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of derivatives and continuation of 1 January 2014
hedge accounting
A v RIS 9 5% SRTH AL P — R A R0 DA v S H RIS 9 Bt
RG2S Bk AR E
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments Available for application — the mandatary effective date
will be determined when the outstanding phases or
HKEFRS 9 are finalised.
s BB A YR AU 14 5% BAIRAEIRS “F-NE-H—H
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts I January 2016
Ak (ERHBHRSRERE) B “E—E—H—H
— R 21
HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies 1 January 2014

LB AW 46 E A AT - BR AR FPAN SR AN DL B The Group has already commenced an assessment of the related impact of
BT HE I R S R 2 5 R B R A AR 2 A B R adopting the above new standards and interpretation and amendments to
B o BT AR A PRAN_ B R TR R T RE AR S standards in the period of initial application. So far, it has concluded that the
TS R A i R 2B o adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated

financial statements.
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43. A w3 B E A wE PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY

AR AP H =+ H EEMEA A (A Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, which are limited liability companies,

FREAEA ) R - at 30 April 2014 are as follows:
KA FRHCBITRA/
FERRaE, CH#AT LA o 6 A 2 i P
BB JEA /A A Proportion of
Place of EA Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ HiREL fully paid up issued share capital/
6 2 ) 44 1 registration Form of share capital/ registered capital FEEH
Name of subsidiary operations legal entity registered capital held by the Company Principal activities

HE fil %
Directly Indirectly

EEEEARAT itk HIRAT vl - 100%  SEBBY
10,000 %7¢
Graceman Industrial Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Manufacturing of plastic ties
company HK$10,000
KRB BA RAT itk HIRAT vl - 100%  SfmHLIER
10,000 #7¢
Skylon International Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Gondolas rental
company HK$10,000
RLEGE 5 HRAT itk HRAT vl - 100%  FRAEERRE
10,000 #7¢
Skyway Transport & Trading Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Provision of transportation
Company Limited company HK$10,000 services
BERETRARA itk HIRAT vl - 0% WL
1,226,667 %70 UM GRS
B R R D R B R
RN b 2 %%
e
Sinogain Engineering Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Trading, design, sales,
company HK$1,226,667 repairs and maintenance of
gondolas and parapet

railings and access equipment
installation and maintenance
services
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

RATRH CRTRA
REMbE, R RARE sk 2 T
R IR /M A Proportion of
Place of N Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ TR fully paid up issued share capital/
I 2 ) 2 registration Form of share capital/ registered capital FEET
Name of subsidiary operations legal entity registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
H# fil %
Directly Indirectly
Epe TREEARAH it AIRAH L - 100%  SREVERSHRE
10,000¥7C
WLS Contractors Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Provision of management
company HK$10,000 contracting services
ERE (R[1) TR i ARAF L - 100% TR
ARAF 25,0001t
WLS (Macau) Engineering Macau Limited Ordinary Scaffolding works business
Company Limited company MOP25,000
HEE R PR A Fits AIRAE il - 100% AR
100,000 #7T
Wui Loong Consultancy Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Provision of consultancy services
Company Limited company HK$100,000
e A e il ARAH Lk - 100%  WENA
100,000 #7T
Wui Loong Holdings Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Property holding
Company Limited company HK$100,000
e AT e i ARAH Lk - 100%  BETEEE
27 YEIESa
IBEE
IRSET (PHE)
1,900,000
Wui Loong Scaffolding Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Scaffolding works business
Works Company Limited company HK$2 and property investment
Non-voting
deferred (Note)

HK$1,900,000
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43. A w) 3 B E A RE ) PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

AT FA T RA
Gl ave CHTRAR kI 7 2 £ b
s WA /g A Proportion of
Place of EA Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ HiEL fully paid up issued share capital/
W8 2 ) 44 registration Form of share capital/ registered capital TR
Name of subsidiary operations legal entity registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
Hik LA
Directly Indirectly
TERER S ARARAR i HIRAH vl - 100% IR
100,000 %70
Wui Loong System Scaffolds Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Scaffolding work business
Company Limited company HK$100,000
TR B A A ] itk HRRAF el = 100%  REHEBER
100,000 #7C
Wui Luen Engineering Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Fitting out business
Company Limited company HK$100,000
B2 (Fil) TRARAR* it HRRAF il = 70%  WAEER
500,000 ¢
WLS Renovations Limited* Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Dormant
company HK$500,000
¥ ANEECF-NENA =+ HIRERE - AREFE * During the year ended 30 April 2014, the Group deregistered WLS Renovations
T 6 e M (it ) LA AT BR A Wl (A 7 s Il Limited, a subsidiary in Hong Kong which was dormant. No gain or loss had arisen
e 48 75 SE T 1) S JG A D) o R R BT B i from the deregistration.
A AT AT i g B AR
BRFaE + e SRR GE IR A N ERES A S, R Note: The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, no rights to attend or vote
JiE B HROR & B & AR > IR A T iR 2 R at general meetings and no rights to receive any surplus assets in a return of capital
5] 5 453 2 B2 A ] 0 5 S e (M b 2t v A R in a winding-up (other than one half of the balance of such assets after the sum of
A3URTF AR ] A IR B A 1,000,000 £ HK$100,000 billion has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of the
JUtR 2 A R E R — LA RRERAN) o Company in such winding-up).

JAAE R BAR AT AT IR (1] 45 BE JB 2 ) A S B AT None of the subsidiaries had any debt security outstanding at the end of the year
AEATAE 5 8 55 o or at any time during the year.

RN A T R T A A [ 2 The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
B 2 AN F B A T o FESEER A B O A of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results or assets of
MBS 2 Fl 2 REAE A IR IR R TU R the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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HHR®RFF

—PERH P H > AN F A
A5 B T 9 R ] % A 48 77,820,000

\—A?

Py R > AR 77,820,000 5% 45 % T (L
5001 W TG BT A > 47008 A A A

£30.078 ¥ 7 > AT A & — U4 H

“HAHEE - NFERHA T EH -
TR AN B H A = F—P4E A 1
H 2 M o

—PUAERH Z+H > ARAT AL
925 T 47 A 356,000,000 17 B R AE -
LR i 6,000,000 % 45 &% T (B /% 0.01 5 UG
F T 2 A > A7 (0 2 A TR 465 0.08 1 s
I AT —E NS H I E
—NEANHZH o REERER A ) H B A
ZER—PEAH A HZ A o

\#7

WHERHAZ+—H > FFEARL
] 100,000,000 /1 JF | 7 52 B A 7 1 HE A
AF7{# 50,000,000 B8 B HERS © 3R HERE
R = FE T AH O NERIEEE
Sifz B A HE A T B BEAT RRIRRE R H AR 5
14 H (G4E5% H) #5306 H (528 H)
EIA - = #2647 48 0.075 W 038 i e 22
100,000,000 1% 52 B #E 75 1% 153 © 50,000,000
JReH i e O R AT > AN RN E YO
3KIH 3,750,000 #5 7T

S

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(@)

(i)

(iii)

On 14 May 2014, the Company granted to certain directors and
consultants of the Group a total of 77,820,000 share options to subscribe
for 77,820,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at exercise price
of HK$0.078 per share with the exercise period from 28 May 2014 to 27
May 2016. Details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 14
May 2014.

On 20 May 2014, the Company granted to certain directors and
consultants of the Group a total of 6,000,000 share options to subscribe
for 6,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at exercise price of
HK$0.081 per share with the exercise period from 4 June 2014 to 3 June
2016. Details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 20 May
2014.

On 21 May 2014, a holder of 100,000,000 unlisted warrants of the
Company exercised 50,000,000 warrants. The warrants were initially
granted on 28 August 2012 and carry a right to subscribe up 100,000,000
Warrant Share at an initial exercise price of $HK0.075 during a period of
30 months (less 28 days) commencing from (and inclusive of) the date
falling 14 days after the issue of the warrants. 50,000,000 new ordinary
shares were issued and a proceed of HK$3,750,000 was received by the
Company.
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44.

(iv)

)

HiHE HREH @

AT PN HILH 5 B3 Frik g
T AT AR T 50,000,000 A e w5
50,000,000 B85 28 i 255 AT > AN
IR WSO 5 5K 3E 3,750,000 #5TC

AT A+ ZH o ARAENE
A )8 /A T B 5L B = 0 I L T ek
DAYl Dragon Oriental Investment Limited
(TEARAT ] R e i M RE B ([ 92)8
KETT SRS 1) SR RS Y 2 B RO A s
BREWEBE) G 51% B > AE
421,700,000 % 7T » H B2 R A AL IL
HEMBLYE A BT RO 2E © AR B B3¢
1% 4:4,340,0004 70 < 111 #8254 55 A F i
R HW > R SE o A B R
A F A A = E—aE A+
A

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD (CONTINUED)

(iv) On 9 June 2014, the holder referred to in (iii) above exercised the

9

remaining 50,000,000 warrants. 50,000,000 new ordinary shares were

issued and a proceed of HK$3,750,000 was received by the Company.

On 12 June 2014, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with the independent third
party to acquire an aggregate of 51% equity interest in Dragon Oriental
Investment Limited (the “Target Company”), a company incorporated
in BVI which is principally engaged in property investment in Hong
Kong, at consideration of HK$21,700,000. The Target Company owns
a property located at Hip Wo Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon. As at the
reporting date, a deposit of HK$4,340,000 had been paid. The acquisition
had not been completed as of the date of these financial statements.
Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 12 June 2014.
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(vi)

(vii)

fiH HR P @0

ATFE—PUENH B H > AR ] E
A AR ([ L B AC R ]) 5T 57 A3 W 14 P B 1
i o N B AR D RS 2R (155
S JF AR S T BN+ — T E) dil s AR
#H £ 30,000,000 # 7T 2 AT R R ([ AT 46
A ) FARBERLE o F B A SR
AR RAES

TSR N A B AT T R 25 H
FEL T — 4 [N 40 A 46 PR A 1 IR 468 R 1
0.1 7T (T WIBHRAE ) (7] T 70 %) A4 ]
T2 AR B 70 7 4 R S0 2 S R
B o ARE T #6555 Bt 2 4 e e ) 2
R PRABAE R BT - AR w58 P 3 R
17 5. 2 300,000,000 B #6 [ % A7 (I 460 i %
#r1) o

A A ARABTAA L R IR AR R &
BUR BRI RET DLBEAT « REIEHRUR AL
AHHA - -NESAZTEHAMA
ffi o

R FE—ELH=ZH > A AR
100,000,000/ I - i 5B B HERE 119 o) — &4 ¢
A A1 14 100,000,000 % 78 1% 5 75 - 58 B
RERBE RN =T — 4 N\ H /N B W4%
s SERARER AT B AT RS B AR
H14H (B35 H ) BR300 H (28 H)
WA > F 012517 (45 0.075 W o iR W i &
100,000,000/ 32 JEAERE A = 100,000,000
JRHT 2 e BT > AN AR 2 YO
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T NEFR

Annual Report 2014

Aok B YU 5 0 B i

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD (CONTINUED)

vi)

(vii)

On 27 June 2014, the Company entered into a conditional placing
agreement (“Placing Agreement’) with placing agent (“Placing Agent”)
in relation to the placing of the convertible bonds (“Convertible Bonds”)
in the aggregate principal amounts of HK$30,000,000 to not less than
six placees who are not acting in connect with connected persons of
the Company, failing which, the Placing Agent will subscribe for the
Convertible Bonds.

The bondholders will have the right to convert the whole or part of the
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds into conversion shares at the
initial conversion price, being HK$0.1 per conversion shares (“Initial
Conversion Price”), subject to adjustments, for a period of 1 year
commencing from the date of issue of the Convertible Bonds. Assuming
the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Bonds are exercised
in full at the Initial Conversion Price, a maximum of 300,000,000
conversion shares (“Conversion Shares”) will be allotted and issued by

the Company.

The Conversion Shares will be issued under the specific mandate to be
obtained at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company. Details

are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 27 June 2014.

On 3 July 2014, another holder of 100,000,000 unlisted warrants of the
Company exercised 100,000,000 warrants. The warrants were initially
granted on 28 August 2012 and carry a right to subscribe up 100,000,000
Warrant share at an initial exercise price of $HK0.075 during a period of
30 months (less 28 days) commencing from (and inclusive of) the date
falling 14 days after the issue of the warrants. 100,000,000 new ordinary
shares were issued and a proceed of HK$7,500,000 was received by the
Company.
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fiH HR P @0

s T IR R
FERIR & b2 i 2 % POk e L v ke
TSI 28 5 T AT BRA ) b T RHIAE I
B AR Z AR BT R B R - A
N RV BER B AT R 5 D 2 ek > A
AR B AR v A I P PR T 0.01 5 U6 2
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EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD (CONTINUED)

(viii) On 17 July 2014, the Company proposed a share consolidation on the

(ix)

basis that every four issued and unissued Shares of HK$0.01 each in
the share capital of the Company be consolidated into one consolidated
share of HK$0.04 each (“Share Consolidation”), subject to the passing
of an ordinary resolution by the Shareholders to approve the proposal at
an extraordinary general meeting and the Listing Division of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited granting the listing of, and permission
to deal in, the consolidation shares upon the Share Consolidation
becoming effective. Details of the proposal are set out in the Company’s

announcement dated 17 July 2014.

On 22 July 2014, the Company proposed to change the domicile of the
Company from the Cayman Islands to Bermuda by way of deregistration
in the Cayman Islands and continuation as an exempted company under
the laws of Bermuda (“Change of Domicile”). The implementation of the
Change of Domicile will not affect the continuity of the Company and its

listing status.

In connection with the Change of Domicile, it is proposed that the new
memorandum and the bye-laws be adopted by the Company to replace,
respectively, the Memorandum and the Articles in order to comply with

the company law of Bermuda.

The Company also proposed to cancel the entire amount standing to
the credit of the share premium account of the Company and to transfer
the credits arising from such cancellation to an account designated as
the contributed surplus account of the Company before the Change of
Domicile becoming effective. Details of the proposal are set out in the

Company’s announcement dated 22 July 2014.
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EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD (CONTINUED)

)

(xi)

On 24 July 2014, the Company announced that the registered office of
the Company in the Cayman Islands was changed to Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands with effect from 23 July 2014.

On 28 July 2014, the Company and the Placing Agent entered into the
supplemental placing agreement, pursuant to which (i) completion of
the issue of the Convertible Bonds is subject to an additional condition
that the Share Consolidation having become effective, (ii) the date on
which all conditions specified in the Placing Agreement (as amended
and supplemented by the supplemental placing agreement) have to be
fulfilled and/or waived is changed from 29 August 2014 to 10 September
2014 or such other date as may be agreed between the Company and the
Placing Agent; and (iii) the initial Conversion Price under the terms of
the convertible Bonds is changed from HK$0.1 per Conversion Share to
HK$0.4 per Conversion Share.
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e RESULTS
WENHA =+ H k45
Year ended 30 April
“E g ZF= “F-_F  ZF——F _F-FF
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Tkt Tt T Tt T
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HKS$000 HKS’000
BEH Turnover 111,961 125,949 115,124 105,741 133,273
B A Cost of sales (102,254) (106,741) (94,358) (86,235) (109.,492)
EA Gross profit 9,707 19,208 20,766 19,506 23,781
HAA Other income 1,058 1,570 1,462 1,129 2,152
FTBUR AT Operating and administrative expenses (75,012) (32,771) (34,128) (49,226) (35,842)
BEYEANTE Increase in fair value of

Z 3 investment properties 620 6,410 6,850 5420 5350
R B A (Loss)/gain on disposal of property,

W (R /A plant and equipment (183) 6 13,345 5 (1,050)
A Finance costs (2,093) (1,612) (1,863) (2,927) (3.915)
T2 Impairment of goodwill (3,138) - - - -
FENE & A T RAE A Impairment of amounts due from

WA associates and joint ventures - (6,779) - (2,100) -
BrBi (B1R) /Al (Loss)/profit before taxation (69,041) (13,968) 6,432 (28,193) (9,524)
B Taxation 7,572 (661) (2,243) 429 1,797
AR (B518) /Al (Loss)/profit for the year (61,469) (14,629) 4,189 (27,764) (1,727)
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HeE AR ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RMA=+H
At 30 April
“FmgE ZEF—= "R R ZZ-FEF
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Tt Tt SR Tt T#IT
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
HBEE Total assets 183,286 208,892 205,050 190,995 209,352
AR Total liabilities (90,117) (80,918) (63,273) (76,254) (90,783)
93,169 127,974 141,777 114,741 118,569
/NI LRI Equity attributable to equity
JRE A £ holders of the Company 99,623 134,234 147,777 117,784 120,022
LY A Non-controlling interests (6,454) (6,260) (6,000) (3,043) (1,453)
93,169 127,974 141,777 114,741 118,569
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SCHEDULE OF PROPERTIES

REFNUENH =+ HZRE
LIS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AS AT 30 APRIL 2014

1B 40 3% 45 i At
(CEFM) A4 [ Al
Approximate R BE HE#: A 4 L
L/E 3 & saleable area Vacant Percentage of the
Description Use (square feet) Status Group’s interest
1) FEEBFET kil 1,756 e 100%
HBL 1198 Commercial Rental
ERE S A JE 10#21-23 %
Unit 21-23
10/F, Pacific Link Tower,
Southmark, No. 11 Yip
Hing Street, Hong Kong
2) FETBFET kil 2,285 e 100%
HBL 1198 Commercial Rental
ERE S A JE 10 #25-27 %
Unit 25-27

10/F, Pacific Link Tower,
Southmark, No. 11 Yip
Hing Street, Hong Kong
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of
shareholders of WLS Holdings Limited (the “Company”) will be held at Rooms
1001-1006, 10th Floor, Southmark, 11 Yip Hing Street, Wong Chuk Hang,

Aberdeen, Hong Kong on 28 August 2014 at 2:30 p.m. to transact the following

ordinary businesses:

L. to receive, consider and approve the audited consolidated financial

statements and the reports of the directors and auditor for the year ended
30 April 2014;

2. (@

(b)

©

(d)

(©

®

To re-elect Mr. So Wang Chun, Edmond as the executive director

of the Company;

To re-elect Mr. Ng Tang as the executive director of the Company;

To re-elect Mr. Yeung Po Chin as the independent non-executive

director of the Company;

To re-elect Mr. Lam Kwok Wing as the independent non-executive

director of the Company;

To re-elect Dr. Fung Ka Shuen as the independent non-executive

director of the Company;

To authorise the board of directors of the Company (the

“Directors”) fix their remuneration.

3. to re-appoint the Company’s auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix

its remuneration;

and, as special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following

resolutions with or without amendments as ordinary resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

4. THAT:

(@

subject to paragraph (c) of this resolution, pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM

Listing Rules”), the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant
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(b)

(©)

Period (as defined below) of all the powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with the unissued shares in the capital of the
Company and to make or grant offers, agreements and options
which might require the exercise of such powers be and the same

is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution shall authorise
the Directors during the Relevant Period to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require the exercise of such

powers after the end of the Relevant Period,

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant
to options or otherwise), issued or dealt with by the Directors
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution,
otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as defined below);
or (ii) the exercise of any option under the share option scheme of
the Company; or (iii) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement
providing for the allotment and issue of shares in lieu of the whole
or part of a dividend on shares in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company in force from time to time, shall not

exceed the aggregate of:

(i)  20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
of the Company in issue on the date of the passing of this

resolution; and

(i1))  (if the Directors are so authorised by a separate ordinary
resolution of the shareholders of the Company) the nominal
amount of any share capital of the Company repurchased by
the Company subsequent to the passing of this resolution (up
to a maximum equivalent to 10% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in issue on the
date of the passing of this resolution), and the authority
pursuant to paragraph (a) of this resolution shall be limited

accordingly; and
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for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period”” means the period from the date of the passing of

this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the

Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
or any other applicable laws of the Cayman Islands to be
held; and

(iii) the date on which the authority given under this resolution
is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of the

shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares in the Company, or offer
or issue of warrants, options or other securities giving rights to
subscribe for shares open for a period fixed by the Directors to
eligible holders of shares in the Company on the register on a fixed
record date in proportion to their then holdings of shares (subject
to such exclusion or other arrangements as the Directors may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements,
or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws
of, or the requirements of, or the expense or delay which may be
involved in determining the existence or extent of any restrictions
or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of, any
jurisdiction outside Hong Kong or any recognised regulatory body

or any stock exchange outside Hong Kong).

S. THAT:

(@)

subject to paragraph (b) of this resolution, the exercise by the
Directors during the Relevant Period (as defined below) of all
powers of the Company to repurchase its shares on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
or any other stock exchange outside Hong Kong on which the

shares of the Company may be listed and recognised by the
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(b)

(©

Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC”) and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for such purpose,
and otherwise in accordance with the rules and regulations of the
SFC, the GEM Listing Rules, the Articles of Association of the
Company and all other applicable laws in this regard, be and the

same is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company which
may be repurchased by the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) of this resolution during the Relevant Period shall
not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the passing of this
resolution and the authority pursuant to paragraph (a) of this

resolution shall be limited accordingly;

for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the date of the passing of this

resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the

Company;

(ii)  the expiration of the period within which the next annual general
meeting of the Company is required by the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company or any other applicable

laws of the Cayman Islands to be held; and

(iii)  the date on which the authority given under this resolution is
revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders

of the Company in general meeting.
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THAT:

subject to the ordinary resolutions nos. 4 and 5 above being duly passed,
the unconditional general mandate granted to the Directors to exercise the
powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with unissued shares pursuant
to resolution no. 4 above be and is hereby extended by the addition thereto
of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
of the Company repurchased by the Company under the authority granted
pursuant to resolution no. 5 above, provided that such amount shall not exceed
10 percent of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the

Company as at the date of the passing of this resolution.
THAT:

the refreshment of the scheme limit of the Company’s Share Option Scheme
adopted on 30 August 2011 and all other Share Option Schemes of the
Company, up to 10% of the number of shares in the capital of the Company
in issue as at the date of passing this resolution (the “New Scheme Limit”)
be and is hereby approved and any director of the Company be and is hereby
authorised to do such acts and execute such documents to effect the New

Scheme Limit.

TREH i

T e FB A B 2 )
BRI

L

T “E—EEA=+—H

BB A I R B A
it

FUsAT

HATHL

SELAE 11 9%

FE R 5 A FE 1045 1001-1006 %

By order of the Board
WLS Holdings Limited
So Yu Shing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 July 2014

Head office and principal place of business in Hong Kong:

Rooms 1001-1006. 10th Floor
Tower A, Southmark

No. 11 Yip Hing Street
Wong Chuk Hang

Aberdeen

Hong Kong
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Notes:

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by the above
notice is entitled to appoint one or more proxy to attend and, subject to the
provisions of Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, vote in

his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

In order to be valid, the form of proxy must be deposited together with a power of
attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified
copy of that power or authority, at the office of the Company’s Hong Kong branch
registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong not less than forty-eight hours before the time for holding the

meeting or any adjourned meeting.

In relation to the proposed resolutions nos. 4 and 6 above, approval is being
sought from the shareholders of the Company for the grant to the Directors of a
general mandate to authorise the allotment and issue of shares under the GEM
Listing Rules. The Directors have no immediate plan to issue any new shares of
the Company other than shares which may fall to be issued under the share option
scheme of the Company or any scrip dividend scheme which may be approved by

shareholders of the Company.

In relation to the proposed resolution no. 5 above, the Directors wish to state
that they will exercise the powers conferred thereby to repurchase shares in
circumstances which they deem appropriate for the benefit of the shareholders of
the Company. An explanatory statement containing the information necessary to
enable the shareholders of the Company to make an informed decision to vote on
the proposed resolution as required by the GEM Listing Rules will be set out in a
separate document to be despatched to the shareholders of the Company with the

annual report for the year ended 30 April 2014.
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